3

V.

For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.

Get Adobe Reader Now!



http://www.adobe.com/go/reader


City of Carroll
¢

112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

GOVERNMENTAL BODY: Carroll City Council
DATE OF MEETING: January 9, 2017
TIME OF MEETING: 5:15P.M.
LOCATION OF MEETING: City Hall Council Chambers

www.cityofcarroll.com

AGENDA

1. Pledge of Allegiance
II. Roll Call

III. Appointment of At-Large Council Member

IV. Consent Agenda
A. Approval of Minutes of the December 27, 2016 Meeting
B. Approval of Bills and Claims
C. Licenses and Permits:

None

D. Appointment by Mayor with Council Approval

1. Vicki Gach — Historical Preservation Commission (3 year term to expire 12-31-19)

2. Nick Badding — Building Code Board of Appeals (5 year term to expire 12-31-21)
Appointment by Council

1. Nick Topf— Board of Adjustment (5 year term to expire 12-31-21)

2. Jean Ludwig — Planning and Zoning Commission (5 year unexpired term to expire 12-31-18)
3. Norm Hutcheson — Airport Commission (6 year term to expire 12-31-22)
4. Eric Jensen — Carroll City/County Communications Commission (1 year term to expire
12-31-17)
5. Mike Pogge-Weaver —Carroll City/County Communications Commission (1 year term to
expire 12-31-17)
V. Oral Requests and Communications from the Audience
VI.  Animal Rescue of Carroll — Appropriation Request
VII.  Council of Governments Housing, Inc., — Appropriation Request
VIII. Ordinances
A. Fifth Amended and Restated Central Business District Urban Renewal Plan

1. Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Ordinance






IX.

X.

XI.
XIIL.
X1
XIV.

XV.

Resolutions
None
Repotts
A. Third Street Storm Sewer Improvements — 2016 — Group “B” East Basin — Change Order No. !
B. Third Street Storm Sewer Improvements — 2016 — Group “A” West Basin — Certificate of
Substantial Completion
C. F.Y.2015-2016 Annual Financial Statement Audit
D. City Council Meeting with OPN Architects
E. Report of Bid Opening — Recreation Center Fire Alarm Replacefnent — Carroll Recreation Center
Committee Reports ‘
Comments from the Mayor

Comments from the City Council

Council Work Session

A. City Signs at Entryways to City

Adjourn

January/February Meetings:

Airport Commission — January 9, 2017

Planning and Zoning Commission — January 11, 2017

Library Board of Trustees — January 16, 2017

Parks, Recreation and Cultural Advisory Board — January 16, 2017

City Council — January 23, 2017

City Council 1% Budget Work Session — Thursday, January 26, 2017

City Council 2™ Budget Work Session — Monday, January 30, 2017

Chamber Annual Banquet — February 6, 2017

City Council 3" Budget Work Session (as needed) — Tuesday, February 7, 2017
City Council 4" Budget Work Session (as needed) — Thursday, February 9, 2017
City Council — February 13, 2017

City Council — February 27, 2017

www.cityofcarroll.com

disabilities, please notify us at least three business days in advance when possible at
712-792-1000, should special accommodations be required,

! The City of Carroll will make every attempt to accommodate the needs of persons with







City of Carroll
\4

112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

MEMO TO:
FROM:
DATE:

SUBJECT:

Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager /15" A
January 4, 2017

Animal Rescue of Carroll — Funding Request

Representatives from the Animal Rescue of Carroll will be at the meeting to request and discuss
an annual appropriation from the City to support their ongoing operations.

Since this is a new funding request this request is being done now, and prior to the completion of
the 2017/2018 budget books, so staff can include the request in the final budget if so directed by

the Council.







Barry T. Bruner

BRUNER, BRUNER & REINHART, LLP
ATTORNEYS AT LAW

225, E. 7" Street Robert S. Bruner

(1913-2006)

David S. Bruner CARROLL, IOWA 51401-0863
Eric D. Reinhart Telephone (712) 792-3480 Robert F. Feilmeyer
Jessica L. Morton Fax (712) 792-6981 (retired)

TO:

www.brunerlegal.com

MEMO

Honorable Mayor, Members of Council and Manager

FROM.: " David S. Bruner, City Attorney
DATED: December 1, 2016

RE:

Vacancy on Council — At Large

Towa Code Section 372.13 provides that a vacancy in an elective city office during the term of
office shall be filled, at the Council’s option, by one of two following procedures:

L.

Council may fill the vacancy by appointment.

The appointment shall be for the period until the next regular City election, or any public
question to be decided by the voters of the City

This appointment shall be made within 60 days after the vacancy occurs. The Council
must publish notice stating the Council intends to fill the vacancy by appointment. The
Council may then make the appointment to fill the vacancy after the notice is published.

However, if within 14 days of the appointment being made there is filed with the City
Clerk a petition which requests a special election to fill the vacancy, the appointment to
fill the vacancy is temporary and the Council shall call a special election to fill the

vacancy permanently.

The number of signatures of eligible electors for a valid petition is at least 1000
signatures or at least the number of signatures equal to 15% of the voters who voted for
candidates for that office at the proceeding regular election, whichever number is fewer.

Council may fill the vacancy by special election. If the Council elects to conduct a
Special Election or a valid petition is filed as stated above, a Special Election must occur
at the earliest practicable date. The Council must give the County Commissioner
(Auditor) at least 32 days written notice of the date chosen for the Special Election.






Council should make its determination of method to fill the vacancy by one of the two below
methods.
1)

By motion, the Council may elect to use the method of appointment to fill the Couﬁcﬂ

vacancy.
By motion, the Council must then authorize the publishing of notice stating the Council’s
intent to fill the vacancy by appointment at its next meeting (see proposed notice)

The appointee shall hold office until the November 2017, election, unless there is an
intervening special election, in which event the election for this office shall be placed on

the ballot at such special election.

OR
2) By motion, the Council may elect to use the method of special election to fill the Council
vacancy.

By motion, the Council must then give written notice of its selection of a special election
to the Auditor at least 32 days before the selected election date.

The elected person shall hold office for the remaining unexpired term, December 31,
2019.

Nomination papers of candidates must be filed 25 days prior to the election.

z\word\dsb\0-1850\itrs-16\vacancy-memol13016






PUBLIC NOTICE OF CITY COUNCIL’S INTENT
TO FILL VACANCY BY APPOINTMENT

In accordance with Sections 372.13 and 362.3, Jowa Code, 2015, Notice is hereby given
that the City Council of Carroll, Towa, intends to fill the At Large City Council vacancy due to

the resignation of Brandon Vonnahme, by appointment at its meeting on the day of
,2017, at 5:15 P.m., at the Farner Government Building, 112 E 5t

Street, Carroll, Iowa.

The appointment shall fill the vacancy until the next regular City election, or any public
question to be decided by the voters of the City of Carroll.

The electors of the City of Carroll, have the right to file a petition requiring that the
yacancy be filled by a special election. However, said petition must be filed within fourteen (14)
days after publication of this notice or within fourteen (14) days after the appointment is made.

This notice is given at the direction of the Carroll City Council.

Laura A. Schaefer, City Clerk
City of Carroll, Jowa

z\word\dsb\0-1850\notices\ward-vacancy-16







City of Ca rre

"

112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-2799

(712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

MEMO TO:
FROM:  Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager{%,\,%f’ uw
DATE: January 4, 2017
SUBJECT: Appointments to Committees, Commissions and Boards

Several committee, commission and board members have terms that expired December 31,
2016. The following lists members that have requested to be reappointed or citizens that

would fill vacancies.

Members to be appointed by the Mayor, with Council approval:

Historical Preservation Vicki Gach 3 year term expiring December 31, 2019
Commission
Building Code of Appeals | Nick Badding 5 year term expiring December 31, 2021

Members to be appointed by Council:

Board of Adjustment Nick Topf 5 year term expiring December 31, 2021
Planning and Zoning Jean Ludwig 5 year unexpired term expiring
Commission December 31, 2018

Airport Commission Norm Hutcheson 6 year term expiring December 31, 2022
Carroll City/County Eric Jensen 1 year term expiring December 31, 2017
Communications

Commission Mike Pogge-Weaver 1 year term expiring December 31, 2017







01-05-2017 09:11 AM

VENDOR SET: 01

City of Carroll

REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL

PATD ITEMS DATES :

PARTIALLY

ITEMS DATES:

UNPAID ITEMS DATES

01-001583

01-001698

01-001210
01-001910

01-002370

01-002520

01-002805

01-002826

01-002652

01-000609

01-003515
01-003515
01-003515
01-003515
01-003515
01-003515

01-004138
01-004138

01-004115

01-000747

ADVANCE SERVICES INC.

ADVANCED LASER TECHNOLOGI

AHLERS
AHLERS

& COONEY P.C.
& COONEY P.C.

ARNOLD MOTOR SUPPLY

AUDITOR OF STATE, OFFICE

BADDING CONSTRUCTION CO.

BARCO MUNICIPAL PRODUCTS

BARRACUDA NETWORKS INC.

BIERSCHBACH EQUIP & SUPPL

BOMGAARS
BOMGAARS
BOMGAARS
BOMGAARS
BOMGAARS
BOMGAARS

CAPITAL SANITARY SUPPLY
CAPITAL SANITARY SUPPLY

CARPENTER UNIFORM CO.

CARROLL AUTC SUPPLY

12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017
12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017

UNT
IT

S

EM
SUMMARY

=======]TEM DATES

12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017
12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017

o

12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017

NIGHT CLEANING W/E 12/25/2016

*%* TOTALS
TONER CARTRIDGE

** TOTALS
AMEND UR PLAN - LEGAL
MISC LEGAL MATTERS

*%* TOTALS
TRANSMISSION FLUSH KIT

** TOTALS
AUDIT FILING FEE

** TOTALS
CEMETERY MAINT. BUILDING

*% TOTALS
SIGNS AND SIGNAL SUPPLIES

** TOTALS
EMAIL SECURITY - 5 YR

*% TOTALS
TAR MACHINE RENTAL

*%* TOTALS
SUPPLIES
SUPPLIES

CHAIN SAW CHAIN & BAR OIL
ENDGATE CHAIN

ENDGATE CHAIN

BITS AND ZIP TIES

** TOTALS
CLEANING SUPPLIES
CLEANING SUPPLIES

*%* TOTALS
MCCARTY - UNIFORM

** TOTALS

PARTS RETURNED

% %

* %

* *

* %

* %

* %

* %

* %

* %

* %

* %

* %

GROSS AMT

198.00
198.00

189.90
189.90

5,085.60
514.00
5,599.60

41.98
41.98

625.00
625.00

43,933.70
43,933.70

4,972.64
4,972.64

1,800.00
1,800.00

3,500.00
3,500.00

14 .34
2.98
50.97
17.94
6.98
32.11
125.32

159.52
323.82
483.34

399.89
399.89

18.03-

======POSTING DATES
12/23/2016 THRU
12/23/2016 THRU
12/23/2016 THRU

PAYMENTS

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

PAGE: 1
BANK: AP
1/05/2017
1/05/2017
1/05/2017
CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
000000 0/00/00 198.00
198.00
000000 0/00/00 189.20
189.90
000000 0/00/00 5,085.60
000000 0/00/00 514.00
5,599.60
000000 0/00/00 41.98
41.98
000000 0/00/00 625.00
625.00
000000 0/00/00 43,933.70
43,933.70
000000 ©0/00/00 4,972.64
4,972.64
000000 0/00/00 1,800.00
1,800.00
000000 0/00/00 3,500.00
3,500.00
000000 0/00/00 14.34
000000 0/00/00 2.98
000000 0/00/00 50.97
000000 0/00/00 17.94
000000 0/00/00 6.98
000000 0/00/00 32.11
125.32
000000 0/00/00 159.52
000000 ©0/00/00 323.82
483.34
000000 0/00/00 399.89
399.89
000000 0/00/00 18.03-






01-05-2017 09:11 aM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PAGE: 2
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll CPEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
mezz==PAYMENT DATES======= =======TTEM DATES=D======== m2mmm==POSTING DATES=======
PATID ITEMS DATES : 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017
UNPAID ITEMS DATES : 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017
VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME ----- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
01-000747 CARROLL AUTO SUPPLY #54 REPAIRS 18.03 0.00 000000 0/00/00 18.03
01-000747 CARROLL AUTO SUPPLY #54 REPAIRS 7.76 0.00 000000 0/00/00 7.76
01-000747 CARROLL AUTO SUPPLY #54 REPAIRS 7.76 0.00 000000 0/00/00 7.76
01-000747 CARROLL AUTO SUPPLY TRANSMISSION FLUID 7.76 0.00 000000 0/00/00 7.76
01-000747 CARROLL AUTO SUPPLY REPATR PARTS 18.03 0.00 000000 0/00/00 18.03
*% TOTALS ** 41.31 0.00 41.31
01-004146 CARROLL CONTROL SYSTEMS AHU FREON LEAK REPAIRS 1,259.92 0.00 000000 0/00/00 1,259.82
** TOTALS ** 1,259.92 0.00 1,259.92
01-004155 CARROLL COUNTY GASOLINE 3,740.02 0.00 000000 0/00/00 3,740.02
** TOTALS *=* 3,740.02 0.00 3,740.02
01-004165 CARROLL COUNTY ENGINEER CONCRETE - AMBULANCE SERVICE 2,452.80 0.00 000000 0/00/00 2,452.80
** TOTALS ** 2,452.80 0.00 2,452.80
01-004170 CARROLL COUNTY RECORDER AMENDED UR PLAN RECORDING 147.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 147.00
** TOTALS ** 147.00 0.00 147.00
01-004196 CARROLL HYDRAULICS REPATR PARTS 4.97 0.00 000000 0/00/00 4.97
01-004196 CARROLL HYDRAULICS OIL TANK GAUGE #24 48.81 0.00 000000 0/00/00 48.81
01-004196 CARROLL HYDRAULICS SUPPLIES 31.89 0.00 000000 0/00/00 31.89
** TOTALS ** 85.67 0.00 85.67
01-004835 COMMERCIAL SAVINGS BANK DEPOSIT SLIPS 23.49 23.49- 000000 12/27/16 0.00
01-004835 COMMERCIAL SAVINGS BANK FEDERAL WITHHOLDINGS 14,398.11 14,398.11- 000000 1/05/17 0.00
01-004835 COMMERCIAL SAVINGS BANK FICA WITHHOLDING 12,984.06 12,984.06- 000000 1/05/17 0.00
01-004835 COMMERCIAL SAVINGS BANK MEDICARE WITHHOLDING 4,012.32 4,012.32- 000000 1/05/17 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 31,417.98 31,417.98- 0.00
01-000366 COMPUTER & NETWORK SPEC LAPTOP 1,499.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 1,499.00
** TOTALS ** 1,499.00 0.00 1,499.00
01-005410 DAILY TIMES HERALD LEGAL PUBLICATIONS 521.06 0.00 000000 0/00/00 521.06
01-005410 DAILY TIMES HERALD ADS 461.50 0.00 000000 0/00/00 461.50
*% TOTALS ** 982.56 0.00 982.56
01-001670 DANKO EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT REPLACE WEATHER SIRENS 13,900.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 13,900.00
** TOTALS ** 13,900.00 0.00 13,900.00
01-000854 DEARBORN NATIONAL JAN. LIFE INSURANCE PREMIUMS 330.12 330.12- 106923 12/30/16 0.00
** TOTALS ** 330.12 330.12- 0.00

01-012590 ECHO ELECTRIC SUPPLY BULBS FOR SHOP LIGHTS 390.77 390.77- 106926 12/30/16 0.00






01-05-2017 09:11 AM A
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll 0
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL

UNT S
ITEM

======PAYMENT DATES=======
PAID ITEMS DATES - 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017
UNPAID ITEMS DATES

VENDOR DESCRIPTION

b

SUMMARY

=======1TEM DATES
12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017
12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017
12/23/2016 THRU

1/05/2017

GROSS AMT

POSTING DATES
12/23/2016 THRU
12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017
12/23/2016 THRU

PAYMENTS

01-012590 ECHO ELECTRIC SUPPLY SAUNA LIGHTS

** TOTALS **

01-006810 ECOWATER SYSTEMS SOFTNER SALT

*% TOTALS **

01~008050 FASTENAL COMPANY
01-008050 FASTENAL COMPANY
01-008050 FASTENAL COMPANY

BOLTS - SHOP STOCK
SUPPLIES
EYE WASH
** TOTALS **

01-006860 FELD FIRE EQUIPMENT CO. BUNKER PROTECTIVE COAT

** TOTALS **

01-008212 FELDMANN & CO. CPA'S PC FY1l6 AUDIT - FINAL

** TOTALS **

01-000633 FILTER CARE FILTERS CLEANED

*% TOTALS **

01-002806 FOUNDATION ANALYTICAL LAB LAB TESTING
** TOTALS **

01-009315 GALL'S INC. CUFFS AND CASE

*% TOTALS **

01-009535 GENERAL RENTAL CHAIN SAW SHARPENING

** TOTALS **

01-009540 GENERAL. TRAFFIC CONTRCLS CONTROLLER GRIFFITH & HWY 30
*% TOTALS **

01-030148 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS LTD METERS
01-030148 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS LTD METERS
01-030148 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS LID METERS
01-030148 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS LTD METERS
01-030148 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS LTD METERS

** TOTALS **

01-012540 IMWCA WORKER COMP #8

** TOTALS **

01-001549 INLAND TRUCK PARTS COMPAN AXLE SHAFT #27
*%* TOTALS **

25.89
416.66

131.25
131.25

77.23
77.17
18.27
172.67

907.00
907.00

3,250.00
3,250.00

64.75
64.75

1,200.00
1,200.00

47.35
47.35

3,713.00
3,713.00

4,452.00
4,452.00
4,212.00
4,212.00
4,490.00
21,818.00

6,335.00
6,335.00

549.53
549.53

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

PAGE :
BANK: AP
1/05/2017
1/05/2017

CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---

000000 0/00/00 25.89
25.89

000000 0/00/00 131.25
131.25

000000 0/00/00 77.23

000000 0/00/00 77.17

000000 0/00/00 18.27
172.67

000000 0/00/00 907.00
907.00

000000 0/00/00 3,250.00
3,250.00

000000 0/00/00 64.75
64 .75

000000 0/00/00 1,200.00
1,200.00

000000 0/00/00 47 .35
47.35

000000 0/00/00 7.00
7.00

000000 0/00/00 3,713.00
3,713.00

000000 0/00/00 4,452.00

000000 0/00/00 4,452.00

000000 ©0/00/00 4,212.00

000000 0/00/00 4,212.00

000000 0/00/00 4,490.00
21,818.00

000000 ©0/00/00 6,335.00
6,335.00

000000 0/00/00 549.53

549.53






01-05-2017 09:11 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PAGE: 4
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll OPEN I TEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
======PAYMENT DATES======= z==z====]TEM DATES=c==c==z=== =z=====POSTING DATES=======
PAID ITEMS DATES : 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017
UNPAID ITEMS DATES : 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017
VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME ----- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
01-012678 IOWA PRISON INDUSTRIES SIGN DECALS 187.11 0.00 000000 0/00/00 187.11
** TOTALS ** 187.11 0.00 187.11
01-012685 IOWA SMALL ENGINE CENTER CHAIN FOR CHAIN SAW 13.95 0.00 000000 0/00/00 13.95
*% TOTALS ** 13.95 0.00 - 13.95
01-002453 JASON MATTHEW LAMBERTZ PRODUCTION COSTS 870.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 870.00
*%* TOTALS ** 870.00 0.00 870.00
01-003001 JOSH ASMUS MEMBERSHIP REFUND 326.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 326.00
*% TQTALS ** 326.00 0.00 326.00
01-000994 KABEL BUSINESS SERVICES - DEC 2016 FLEX SPENDING 73.50 73.50- 000000 12/27/16 0.00
01-000994 KABEL BUSINESS SERVICES - OCT/NOV HRA CHECKS 1,560.93 1,560.93- 106924 12/30/16 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 1,634.43 1,634.43- 0.00
01-002472 KENNETH BENSLEY REIMBURSEMENT GTSB 71.06 71.06- 106925 12/30/16 0.00
** TOTALS ** 71.06 71.06- 0.00
01-014815 KEYSTONE LABORATORIES MONTHLY BAC-T/FLUORIDE 132.50 0.00 000000 0/00/00 132.50
*% TOTALS ** 132.50 0.00 132.50
01-014929 KING CONSTRUCTION 3RD ST STORM SEWER GROUP A 59,694.94 0.00 000000 0/00/00 59,694.94
*%* TOTALS ** 59,694.94 0.00 59,694.94
01-001%947 MATHESON TRI-GAS INC. SUPPLIES 27.05 0.00 000000 0/00/00 27.05
** TOTALS *¥* 27.05 0.00 27.05
01-001873 MTI DISTRIBUTING INC. MOWER REPAIR PARTS 388.38 0.00 000000 0/00/00 388.38
** TOTALS ** 388.38 0.00 388.38
01-018408 NAPA AUTO PARTS REPAIR PARTS #54 11.77 0.00 000000 0/00/00 11.77
*% TOTALS ** 11.77 0.00 11.77
01-020208 O'HALLORAN INTERNATIONAL FILTERS #27 36.41 0.00 000000 0/00/00 36.41
*% TOTALS ** 36.41 0.00 36.41
01-020330 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS LIGHT BULBS AND OIL FITLER 13.87 0.00 000000 0/00/00 13.87
** TOTALS *=* 13.87 0.00 13.87
01-002054 OMG MIDWEST HIGH RIDGE ROAD RESURFACING 7,259.57 0.00 000000 0/00/00 7,259.57
** TOTALS ** 7.,259.57 0.00 7,259.57






01-05-2017 09:11 AM

VENDOR SET: 01

City of Carroll

REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL

PATD ITEMS DATES

PARTIALLY

ITEMS DATES:

UNPAID ITEMS DATES

12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017
12/23/2016 THRU

UNTS
ITEM

SUMMARY

1/05/2017

(Sl

=======]TEM DATES
12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017
12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017
12/23/2016 THRU

1/05/2017

GROSS AMT

PAYMENTS

12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017
12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017
12/23/2016 THRU

5

01-0029211

01-000625
01-000625
01-000625
01-000625
01-000625
01-000625
01-000625
01-000625
01-000625
01-000625

01-000143

01-023640

01-003003

01-003002
01-003002
01-003002
01-003002

01-023828

01-000514

01-000459

01-025050

01-025250

PERFECT MIND

PRODUCTIVITY
PRODUCTIVITY
PRODUCTIVITY
PRODUCTIVITY
PRODUCTIVITY
PRODUCTIVITY
PRODUCTIVITY
PRODUCTIVITY
PRODUCTIVITY
PRODUCTIVITY

PLUS
PLUS
PLUS
PLUS
PLUS
PLUS
PLUS
PLUS
PLUS
PLUS

ACCOUNT
ACCOUNT
ACCOUNT
ACCOUNT
ACCOUNT
ACCOUNT
ACCOUNT
ACCOUNT
ACCOUNT
ACCOUNT

PUBLIC FINANCIAL MGMT

RAY'S REFUSE SERVICE

RED'S TRANSFER & STORAGE

REILINGS 71

SOUTH

HARDWARE FOR CONVERSION
** TOTALS **

REPATR PARTS
EQUIPMENT REPAIR PARTS
REPATIR PARTS
REPATR PARTS
REPAIR PARTS
#33 ATIR FILTER
#33 OIL & FUEL FILTERS
LATCH
SKID LOADER REPAIRS
REPAIR PARTS
** TOTALS **

FINANCIAL ADVISOR FEES
** TOTALS **

DEC. GARBAGE PICKUP
*% TOTALS **

CITY MANAGER MOVING EXPENSE
** TOTALS **

GASOLINE #20

REILINGS 71 SOUTH
REILINGS 71 SOUTH
REILINGS 71 SOUTH

RETIRED SENIOR VOLUNTEER

ROGNES CORPORATION

ROTERT CONSTRUCTION

SCHUMACHER ELEVATOR CO.

SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO.

GASOLINE
GASOLINE
GASOLINE

** TOTALS

2ND HALF FY17 FUNDING

** TOTALS

3RD ST STORM SEWER GROUP B

*%* TOTALS

BASEBALL STADIUM RENOVATION

ELEVATOR MAINTENANCE

** TOTALS

*% TOTALS

PAINT MACHINE CLEANER

** TOTALS

* %

* %

* %

* %

* ¥

838.00
838.00

101.35
574 .45
32.02
7.65
118.66
59.00
77.50
21.00
57.25
49.06
1,097.94

15,564.23
15,564.23

844 .66
844 .66

4,000.00
4,000.00

36.18
24.81
34.96
26.48
122.43

5,500.00
5,500.00

26,192.45
26,192.45

50,787.00
50,787.00

200.91
200.91

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

PAGE:
BANK: AP
1/05/2017
CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
000000 0/00/00 838.00
838.00
106922 12/30/16 0.00
106922 12/30/16 0.00
106922 12/30/16 0.00
106922 12/30/16 0.00
106922 12/30/16 0.00
106922 12/30/16 0.00
106922 12/30/16 0.00
106922 12/30/16 0.00
106922 12/30/16 0.00
106922 12/30/16 0.00
0.00
000000 ©0/00/00 15,564.23
15,564.23
000000 0/00/00 844 .66
844 .66
000000 0/00/00 4,000.00
4,000.00
000000 0/00/00 36.18
000000 0/00/00 24.81
000000 0/00/00 34.96
000000 0/00/00 26.48
122.43
000000 0/00/00 5,500.00
5,500.00
000000 0/00/00 26,192.45
26,192.45
000000 0/00/00 50,787.00
50,787.00
000000 0/00/00 200.91
200.91
000000 0/00/00 9.89

9.89






01-05-2017 0S8:11 AM ACCOUNT S PAYABLE PAGE: 6
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll OPEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
======PAYMENT DATESz==mm== z==zz===]TEM DATES=z=z=z====== ======POSTING DATES=======
PAID ITEMS DATES : 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017
UNPAID ITEMS DATES : 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017
VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME ----- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
01-025333 SNYDER & ASSOCIATES INC. US 30 & GRANT RD IMP. 1,141.50 0.00 000000 0/00/00 1,141.50
*% TOTALS ** 1,141.50 0.00 1,141.50
01-025655 SPECTRUM LABORATORY PRODU CHLOROFORM 148.77 0.00 000000 0/00/00 148.77
*%* TOTALS ** 148.77 0.00 148.77
01-028180 STATE HYGIENIC LABORATORY WATER SAMPLE ANALYSIS 39.50 0.00 000000 0/00/00 39.50
** TOTALS ** 39.50 0.00 39.50
01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO. ENVELOPES 142.52 0.00 000000 0/00/00 142.52
*%* TQOTALS ** 142.52 0.00 142.52
01-025935 SUBWAY COOL KIDS - NO SCHOOL 37.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 37.00
**% TOTALS ** 37.00 0.00 37.00
01-002999 TASER INTERNATIONAL TASER CARTRIDGES 143.36 0.00 000000 0/00/00 143.36
** TOTALS ** 143 .36 0.00 143.36
01-026605 TIEFENTHALER AG-LIME TOPDRESSING 239.75 0.00 000000 0/00/00 239.75
*%* TOTALS ** 239.75 0.00 239.75
01-027060 TREASURER OF IOWA 12/1-12/15/16 SALES TAX 395.00 395.00- 000000 12/27/16 0.00
*%* TOTALS ** 395.00 395.00- 0.00
01-004810 TRUE VALUE HARDWARE & HOM PAINT 55.98 0.00 000000 0/00/00 55.98
** TOTALS ** 55.98 0.00 55.98
01-003220 TURFWERKS SPRAYER REPAIR 255.86 0.00 000000 0/00/00 255.86
** TOTALS ** 255.86 0.00 255.86
01-001088 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES REMIT PLUS MAINTENANCE 2,805.78 0.00 000000 0/00/00 2,805.78
01-001088 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES ONLINE BILLING ACCESS 180.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 180.00
** TOTALS ** 2,985.78 0.00 2,985.78
01-0029288 ULTRAMAX AMMO 1,680.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 1,680.00
** TOTALS ** 1,680.00 0.00 1,680.00
01-028168 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE FREIGHT W/E 12/24/2016 55.42 55.42- 106927 12/30/16 0.00
** TOTALS ** 55.42 55.42- 0.00
01-028174 UNITED STATES CELLULAR CELL PHONES 251.63 251.63- 106928 12/30/16 0.00

*% TOTALS ** 251.63 251.63- 0.00






01-05-2017 09:11 BM ACCOUNTS PAYABTLE PAGE:

VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll OPEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP

REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY

======PAYMENT DATES======= z=======]TEM DATES========= ======POSTING DATES=======

PAID ITEMS DATES : 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017

PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017

UNPAID ITEMS DATES : 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017

VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME =----- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---

01-029009 VESSCO INC. VALVES 107,212.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 107,212.00
*% TOTALS ** 107,212.00 0.00 107,212.00

01-030306 WEBB CONTROL INC. 2016 PEST CONTROL 210.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 210.00
#% TOTALS ** 210.00 0.00 210.00

01-002166 WINTER EQUIPMENT COMPANY PLOW GUARDS 976 .01 0.00 000000 0/00/00 976.01
*% TOTALS ** 976 .01 0.00 976.01

* Payroll Expense 144,680.33

7






01-05-2017 09:11 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABTLE PAGE:
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll OPEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY

======PAYMENT DATES======= =======1TEM DATES========= ======POSTING DATES=======
PATD ITEMS DATES - 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017
UNPAID ITEMS DATES : 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017

REPORT TOTALS

GRCSS PAYMENTS BALANCE
PAID ITEMS 180,324 .68 180,324.68CR 0.00
PARTIALLY PAID 0.00 0.00 0.00
UNPAID ITEMS 412,488.24 0.00 412,488.24
VOID ITEMS 0.00 0.00 0.00
** TQTALS ** 592,812.92 180,324.68CR 412,488.24

UNPAID RECATP

UNPAID INVOICE TOTALS 412,506.27
UNPAID DEBIT MEMC TOTALS 0.00
UNAPPLIED CREDIT MEMO TOTALS 18.03CR

** UNPAID TOTALS ** 412,488.24






01-05-2017 09:11 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PAGE:
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll OPEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY

======PAYMENT DATES======= =======1TEM DATES========= ======POSTING DATES=======
PATID ITEMS DATES : 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017
UNPAID ITEMS DATES 12/23/2016 THRU 1/05/2017 12/23/2016 THRU

001
010
110
178
304
309
311
600
602
610
621
850

GRAND

FUND TOTALS

GENERAL FUND

HOTEL/MOTEL TAX

ROAD USE TAX FUND

CRIME PREV/SPEC PROJECTS
C.P. STREETS

C.P. - CORRIDOR OF COMM.
C.P.-PARKS & RECREATION

WATER UTILITY FUND
WATER UTILITY CAP.
SEWER UTILITY FUND
STORM WATER CAP. IMP.

MEDICAL INSURANCE FUND
*  PAYROLL EXPENSE

IMP.

TOTAL

70,591.04
16.96
20,869.10
148.77
7,259.57
6,542.80
99,078.68
29,701.33
107,212.00
5,274.85
99,546.44
1,891.05
144,680.33

592,812.92







City of Carroli
4

112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

MEMO TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
FROM: Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager /Lrg? W
DATE: January 4, 2017

SUBJECT: COG Housing, Inc., Housing Trust Fund — Funding Request

Rick Hunsaker from COG Housing, Inc. will be at the meeting to request and discuss an annual
appropriation from the City to support the Housing Trust Fund. They will be requesting $2.000 a
year from the City of Carroll. Attached is some information on their request.

Since this is a new funding request this request is being done now, and prior to the completion of
the 2017/2018 budget books, so staff can include the request in the final budget if so directed by
the Council.





/\ Council of Governments Housing, Inc

| 1009 East Anthony Street, PO Box 768 Carroll lowa 51401
Phone: (712) 792-9914 Fax: (712) 792-1751

December 28, 2016

Mike Pogge-Weaver
City of Carroll

112 East Fifth St
Carroll, IA 51401

Dear Mr. Pogge-Weaver:

COG Housing, Inc. is the state-recognized Housing Trust Fund for west central lowa. Trust funds
exist statewide to assist in the expansion and preservation of housing-opportunities for low and
very low income families and individuals in the region. COG Housing, Inc. is a non-profit corporation
sponsored and staffed by Region XII COG, your local planning agency with 25 years’ experience in
delivering housing programs. The COG Housing service territory includes all rural and urban areas in
Audubon, Carroll, Crawford, Greene, Guthrie, and Sac Counties.

COG Housing, Inc. receives funding annually from the State of lowa’s Local Housing Trust Fund
Program. In 2016, COG Housing, Inc. was awarded $235,872. While this award is significant, HTF
program funds require a 25% local match. The Boards of Supervisors in Audubon, Carroll, Crawford,
Greene, Guthrie and Sac Counties each contribute $3,000 annually to the HTF. Regionally, banks
contribute an average of $5,500 annually towards the HTF program. In the past, Region Xl COG and
COG Housing, Inc. have provided an average of $37,500 to fulfill the remaining match requirement.

As, HTF funds decrease and the need for local matching funds increase (as types of acceptable
match are redefined), | respectfully request that the City of Carroll support the COG Housing Trust
Fund in FY2018 with a contribution of $2,000. Please know that any contribution for this program
will be appreciated and beneficial for the continued operation of the HTF.

The trust fund provides funds to projects across the region, with many projects completed in Carroll
since it began in 2003. While the location of projects varies each year, the map included in the
enclosed summary depicts the location of COG Housing’s projects over the last three years.

As part of your participation, you will be identified as a COG Housing contributor in all of our HTF
articles and other applicable publications. If you have any questions or desire someone to visit the
council at a meeting, please contact me at 712-775-7800 or via email at

rhunsaker@regionl2cog.org.

Thank you for your consideration.

Richard T. Hunsaker
Executive Director





i~ @\ coG Housing, Inc ”ﬁ
- L b5t Gf
‘ A Subsidiary Corporation o A

b Region XII COG
Exy Housing Trust Fund
$10,313.89 Lytton ‘ia 5
Ny =9 2014-2016 Investments
Sac City
$43,856.94
Lake View
: $11,170.32
Odebolt
$33,194.14
Wall Lake
$10,000
gicggugo 9“
$7,938, $7,719 :
Carroll Churdan
$3‘£a;|15 $79,778.74 $27,870.44
@ Denison : f;il§ t‘gg Gr;]l.‘: :;gc;ioon
Charte; Oak '139'81 @} # \
313200 ) Glidden 1
) $33,443.22 &
Scranton <
Arion $30,663.89 Jefferson
$6,104.22 $25,379.08
Manning
$B7,458.87 Dedham )
& Manilla i $8,572.70 p =i R
. 5 oon Rapidg i il
Dﬁ\g ;Zatg $17,710'?78 $E§g;
Bagie 3 @
Total County | e
Investment
. (Families Assisted) Audubon
3 $44,392.15
| |Audubon (14) $111,201.83 =
Carroll (25) $186,052.31
Cl’anOI’d(l6) $121I750‘ 14 Hamlin Panra
$11,375.35 2 $13,881
Greene (15) $104,018 11 g,:%azu;‘;% y Guthrie Center
Guthrie (19) $127,954.88 Bt 7 ; $44,616.26

Sac (17) $127,732.39

Brayton
$9,801

=\ Menlo
$9,091.40






‘ COG Housing Inc.
§ 2016 Housing Trust Fund Report

COG Housing, Inc. was founded to assist in the expansion of housing opportunities for low and very low P
income families and individuals in the region. COG Housing, Inc. is a non-profit corporation sponsored and

staffed by Region XII COG. COG Housing, Inc. serves the same area as the 28E Agreement membership of =

Region XII COG, formed in 1973 based upon recommended regional boundaries. The COG Housing service
territory includes all rural and urban areas in Audubon, Carroll, Crawford, Greene, Guthrie, and Sac Counties.

COG Housing HTF Goals

The following goals and activities have established for COGH HTF. Preserving the region’s housing stock,
facilitating homeownership of persons with low and moderate incomes, creating new affordable housing units,

and meeting emergency needs are the HTF’s housing goals.
= Preservation through rehabilitation

= Homeownership/own
= New affordable Units

ership preservation

s Emergency Assistance

Eligible Activities & Uses of Funds
Assistance from new and revolved funds will continue to be provided following this matrix.

Income Level (% of AMI) | Loan Type Interest Rate | Term

Below 30% Forgivable N/A 5-year forgivable

31%-50% 1/2 repayable/ 1/2 grant 2% 5-10 years/ 5-year forgivable
51%-80% Repayable 4% 5-10 yeaers

COG Housing Staff:

Rick Hunsaker, Executive Director; rhunsaker@region12cog.org
Chris Whitaker, Local Assistance Director, cwhitaker@regionl12cog.org

Karla Janning, Housing Programs Coordinator, kjanning@regionl2cog.org
Ashley Owen, Housing Administrative Assistant, aowen@region12cog.org

Nancy Muhlbauer, Housing Inspector, nmuhlbauer@region12cog.org
JoAnn Olberding, Executive Secretary, jolberding@region12cog.org

EQUAL HOUSING
OPPORTUNITY

COG Housing Board:

Uses of Funds
All funding will be provided to low to
moderate-income families (those with an
adjusted annual income of not more than
80% of the greater of county or statewide
non-metro median income limitas published
annually by the Iowa Finance Authority).
At least 30% of HTF funds will be reserved
for persons of extremely low incomes (less
than 30% of median income).

Duane Deist, County Supervisor (Audubon County, Rural Audubon)

Rod Rowland, Vice President, Landmands National Bank, Audubon County, Audubon)
Marty Danzer, County Supervisor (Carroll County, Carroll)

Jim Gossett, Raccoon Valley REC (Carroll County, Carroll)

Eric Skoog, County Supervisor (Crawford County, Denison)

Coletta Weeda, (Crawford County, Denison)

Guy Richardson, County Supervisor (Greene County, Jefferson)

Craig MacDonald, Realtor, MacDonald Insurance Agency (Greene County, Scranton)
Jerry Caraher, County Supervisor (Guthrie County, Rural Bayard)

Carmen Atkinson, (Guthrie County, Panora)

Ranell Drake, County Supervisor (Sac County, Odebolt)

Steve Spotts, lowa State Bank (Sac County, Sac City)

@ 1009 East Anthony. Street, PO Box-768 @ Carroll, TA 51401 - @. (712) 7929914 @ Fax (712)792-1751 @ wwwregionl2cog.org






112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-2789 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

MEMO TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
FROM: Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager ?i}i{{a’ w
A
DATE: January 4, 2017

SUBJECT: City Council Meeting with OPN Architects

At the December 27, 2016 City Council Meeting, Council accepted the Additional Services request
from OPN Architects to review the existing feasibility study and cost estimate. It is proposed to
set a meeting date of Monday, January 16 at 6:00P.M for.this discussion. This will be the first of
two meetings with OPN regarding the City Hall/Library Project.

RECOMMENDATION: Motion to schedule a special City Council meeting on January 16,
2017 at 6:00P.M. to review the existing feasibility study and cost estimate for the City
Hall/Library Project with OPN Architects







City of Carroll
¢

112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

MEMO TO:  Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
FROM: Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager W‘@’ w
DATE: January 5, 2017

SUBJECT: Committee Reports

1. Library Board (meets 3 or 4™ Monday of month) —
Board of Adjustment (meets 1% Monday of month) — January 3, 2017
Planning and Zoning Commission (meets 2" Wednesday of month) —

Carroll Airport Commission (meets 2" Monday of month) —

A

Parks, Recreation & Cultural Advisory Board (meets 3™ Monday of January, March,
May, July, September and November) — December 27,2016

Carroll County Solid Waste Management Commission (meets 2" Tuesday of month) —
Historical Preservation Commission (no regular meeting dates) —

Safety Committee (no regular meeting dates) — December 16,2016

A S )

Civil Service Commission (as needed) —






BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
MINUTES OF JANUARY 3, 2017

The Board of Adjustment met in regular session on this date at 5:15 PM in the Farner
Government Building, City Council Chambers. Members present: Aaron Juergens, Ruth
Nellesen, Mark O’Leary, Donna Pudenz and Nick Topf. Absent: Marion Burns and John
Wessling. Also present: David Bruner, City Attorney, Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager, Greg
Schreck, Building/Fire Safety Official and Perry Johnson, Buildig\g Official.

ok ok ok ok ok ok

irperson. MOTION by Pudenz

O’Leary served as interim chairperson to el

to elect Pudenz as vice-chairperson. All preset :. Burns and Wessling.

Motion carried.

aye. Absent: Burns and Wessling. Motion carried.
k ok ok ook ok ok ok

Case 02-15-01 a request from Nicole I. Goecke (Johnson), for a special use permit, home

occupation, for 739 Troy Drive, legally described as Lot 17, except the West 25 feet; and the

West 29 feet of Lot 16, all in Block 7, Bierl’s Addition, Carroll, Carroll County, Iowa was

presented for consideration. Nicole proposes to have a dog daycare/boarding facility in her

garage. All adjacent property owners were provided written notice via USPS. Nicolle Goecke






(Johnson) appeared to support the request. No other persons appeared to support or oppose the
request. MOTION by Nellesen, second by Juergens, to grant the request as presented for a
special use permit, home occupation. All present voted aye. Absent: Burns and Wessling.

Motion carried.

ko osk ok sk ok ok

MOTION by Juergens, second by Pudenz, to adjourn at 5:24 PM. All present voted aye.

Absent: Burns and Wessling. Motion carried.

Mark O’Leary, Chairperson





PARKS, RECREATION AND CULTURAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES
December 27, 2016 @ 4:00 P.M.
Farner Government Building — Council Chambers

The Parks, Recreation and Cultural Board meet on this date at 4:00 p.m. at the Farner
Government Building — Council Chambers. Members Present: LaVern Dirkx, Cara
Greteman, Brook Mikkelsen, Ryan Milligan, Clay Netusil and Lois Neu. Absent: Jeff
Aden, Summer Boes and Jen Munson. Staff Present: Jack Wardell, Director of Parks
and Recreation, McKenzie Kiger, Recreation Superintendent and Mike Pogge-Weaver,

City Manager.

The meeting was called to order at 4:.00 P.M.

* * * * * * *

It was moved by Milligan and seconded by Greteman to approve the December 27,
2016 agenda as presented. All present voted Aye.
It was moved by Neu and seconded by Greteman to approve the minutes of the

November 21, 2016 meeting. All present voted Aye.

* * * * * * *

Carl Rodgers, Chad Hunter and Alex Robinson from lowa State University presented to
the board the latest version of the Graham Park District Plan. The committee will review
sections of the plan when presented by the City Staff for future park projects. No action
taken.

It was moved by Greteman and seconded by Neu to adjourn at 4:53 pm. All voted Aye.






SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
December 16, 2016
The Safety Committee met on the above date at 7:30 A.M. at the Fire Station.

Members Present:

Safety Director Greg Schreck McKenzie Kiger (Rec Center)
Sean Kleespies (WWIP) Tom Weber (Public Works)
Jeff Warnke (At-Large Employee) Andy Snyder (Rec Center)
Scott Haakenson (Golf Course) Terry Kluver (Water)

Laura Schaefer (City Hall) Brad Butke (Police)

The meeting was called to otder by Schreck at 7:30 A.M.

Motion by Watnke, second by Webet, to approve the minutes of the March 19, 2016 meeting, as
written. All present voted aye. Motion carried

‘The Committee reviewed work-telated injuries since the last meeting with no serious injuries reported.
The Committee was reminded of the Return-To-Wotk Policy for wotk related injuries and working
with employees to know their own physical limitations.

The Committee discussed being awate of their surroundings and take necessary precautions to avoid
slips, trips and falls.

IMWCA will conduct a wotkshop in Cattoll on Februatry 16, 2017, 9-11AM, at the fire station. Safety
Director Greg Schreck plans to attend.

Scott Smith, IMWCA, will be conducting a site visit on January 5, 2017.

The City will schedule training sessions for all employees that need CPR training and to use the AED
machines. We will plan to work with Recreation Supetintendent McKenzie Kiger to get sessions
scheduled in January or February 2017.

Contact Police Chief Brad Burke to get more information about IMWCA’s online university. This is
a very good resource fot bloodbotne pathogens training.

ICAP is offering $1,000 grants in 2017 to all members for safety upgrades. Committee membets wete
asked to review their work locations fot possible upgrades so we can apply for the grant.

Safety Ditrector Greg Schreck is working to schedule another safety refresher course. More
information to follow.

Motion by Snyder, second by Butke to adjourn at 7:50 A.M. All present voted aye. Motion cattied.

TLaura Schaefet, City Clerk







City of Carroll
¢

112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

MEMO TO: Mike Pogge-Weavet, City Manager YV\'),‘? (e
FROM: Randall M. Krauel, Director of Public Works 74
DATE: January 4, 2017

SUBJECT: Council Work Session
January 9, 2017

City Signs at Entryways to City

I.  Planning Session Report, 08-29-15
New Priority Projects, Programs, Policies and Initiatives

e City signs at entryways to City

II.  Planning Session Report, 2016
On-Going Commitments/Obligations

e City signs at entryways to City

III.  Capital improvement Plan F.Y. 18-22
Corridor Entry Features

IV.  F.Y.16-17 Budget
Capital Projects - Streets
Cotridor Entry Featutes $40,000
V.  Other Considerations

A. Westgate Mall Association sign request, 11-28-16

B. Wayfinding signing

RMK:ds





City of Carroll, Iowa
Planning Session Report
August 29, 2015

Mayor:
Adam P. Schweers

City Council:
Mike D. Kots
Tom Tait
Clay Haley
Carolyn M. Siemann
Eric P. Jensen
Jerry Fleshner

L
I

Facilitated by:
Jeff Schott
Institute of Public Affairs
University of Iowa

APPROVED 09-14-15






New Priority Projects, Programs, Policies and Initiatives

The participants reviewed potential projects, programs, policies and initiatives for
consideration and selected the following as new priorities for the upcoming 24 month
period:

o Investigate enhancing the Community Endowment Fund to offset project
expenses and/or operational expenses.

o Promote the “collective impact” theory of city planning (i.e., organizations
from different sectors adopting common agendas to combat community
issues such as limited resources, poverty, crime, etc.).

o Investigate possibility of providing staff to develop new ideas and promote
community events, theater and other community programs.

Investigate Graham Park parking concept.

Cemetery maintenance building.

City signs at entryways to City.

Review City sidewalk policy; investigate developing a sidewalk repair program.
e Evaluate compensation of Mayor and City Council.

A complete list of all programs and initiatives considered by the Mayor and City Council
members is attached as Exhibit A.

Organizational Effectiveness

The Mayor and City Council reviewed a variety of ideas relating to improving
organizational effectiveness to accomplish the selected goals and priorities. After review
and discussion, the Mayor and City Council selected the following steps to improve
organizational effectiveness:

e Council needs to receive timely reports and communications from
boards/commissions regarding any significant discussions/issues/decisions with
which they are dealing. Boards/commissions should provide periodic
updates/presentations at Council meetings on such significant
discussions/issues/decisions.

e Minimize handouts at meetings; if materials/information is not available by
Thursday, the item should not be placed on the Council meeting agenda (unless it
is an emergency, extremely time-sensitive matter).

o Review all City policies. Many policies pre-date the 21% century and may not
accurately reflect current trends.

e Continue to host a chamber morning coffee as a group once a year.

o Open and honest work sessions - off cycle from regular Council meetings





City of Carroll, Iowa
Planning Session Report
2016

Mayor:
Dr. Eric Jensen

City Council:
Mike Kots
Misty Boes
Clay Haley
Carolyn Siemann

Jerry Fleshner

Brandon Vonnahme

Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager
Laura Schafer, City Clerk/Finance Director
Randy Krauel, Public Works Director
Greg Schreck, Building Official/Fire Chief
Jack Wardell, Parks & Rec Director
Brandie Ledford, Library Director
Brad Burke, Police Chief

L

I

Facilitated by:
Jeff Schott

Institute of Public Affairs

University of Iowa

APPROVED 11-14-16






On-Going Commitments/Obligations

The following were identified as on-going commitments/obligations for the upcoming 24
month period:

o Develop Library/City Hall concept/implementation/financing plan
e Council adoption of Financial Policies
Waste Water Treatment Plant improvements - comply with disinfection and
nutrient reduction requirements
Continue street improvements
Continue Corridor of Commerce streetscapes on planned basis
o Phases VIl and IX

e Develop plan/strategy for Rec Center for long-term viability

o Programming, membership, financing, operational and physical

improvements

e Grant Rd/Hwy 30 improvements
e Street maintenance building - develop financing plan
Learn more about and provide information about the Community
Endowment Fund
e Review Graham Park Athletic district/ISU plan when developed

o Investigate Graham Park parking concept.
e Trails expansion
e City signs at entryways to city.
e Develop sidewalk repair program.

New Priority Projects, Programs, Policies and Initiatives

The participants reviewed potential projects, programs, policies and initiatives for
consideration and selected the following as new priorities for the upcoming 24 month

period (listed in priority order):

1 (Tie) Start Rec Center improvement projects
1 (Tie) Implement Housing Study

3 Rental Housing Inspection

A complete list of all programs and initiatives considered by the Mayor and City Council
members is attached as Exhibit A.





FY 18 thru FY 22

Dcpértment Streets

Capital Improvement Plan
Contact Public Works Director

City of Carroll, Jowa

Project # " §TR-17-005 . Type Construction-New
R . : Useful Life 40 years

ProjectName Corridor Entry Features Category Street Construction

Description Total Project Cost:  $440,000

Consiruction of city signs at entryways to the City.

Justification 4' .

"City signs at entryways to City" is a an On-Going Commitment/Obligation of the Planning Session Report 2016, approved 11-14-16.

Prior Expenditures FY 18 FY 19 FY 20 Fy 21 FY 22 Total

[ 40,000 )] _Construction 400,000 400,000

Total Total 400,000 400,000

Prior Funding Sources FY 18 FY 19 FY 20 FY 21 FY 22 Total

r 40M G.0. Bond (Council Vote) 400,000 400,000
Total Total 400,000 400,000
Budget Impact/Other J '

December 27, 2016






304~C.P. STREETS
DEBT SERVICE / CAPITAL
STREET CONSTRUCTION

CITY oOF CARR L
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDED ovDGET
AS OF: JANUARY 31ST, 2016

(mmm e 2015-2016 —==m=m=m===m=== ) 2016-2017

2013-2014 2014-2015 CURRENT Y-T-D CURRENT YR CITY ADMIN.
ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL REESTIMATE RECOMMENDED

EXPENDITURES

CAPITAL OUTLAY

304-6-7521-37501 STREET MAINTENANCE BLDG 0 0 250,000 0 25,000 250,000

304-6-7521-37950 CORRIDOR ENTRY FEATURES 0 - 0 0 0 0 40,000

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 0 250, 000 0 25,000 290,000
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 250,000 Q 25,000 290,000
REVENUES OVER/ (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 0 0 ( 250,000 0 25,000) (  290,000)

~154—






001-GENERAL FUND

CITY

OF CARL L
ADMINTSTRATION RECOMMENDEL . 0OGET

AS OF: JANUARY 31ST, 2016
OTHER ACTIVITIES
STREETS
—————————————— 20152016 ——mmmmmm ) 2016-2017
2013-2014 20142015 CURRENT Y-T-D CURRENT YR CITY ADMIN.
ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL REESTIMATE RECOMMENDED
EXPENDITURES
TRANSFERS
001~6-6121-59107 TRANSF. TO C.P. STREETS___ 175,000 0 250,000 0 250,000 140,000
TOTAL TRANSFERS 175,000 0 250,000 0 250,000 140,000
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 175,000 0 250,000 0 250,000 140,000
REVENUES OVER/ (UNDER) EXPENDITURES {  175,000) 0 (  250,000) 0 (  250,000) 140,000)

-7 8-






CITY OF CARROLL

General Fund

BUDGET WORKSHEET
Fiscal Year 2016-2017
Public Works FY. 15-16 FY. 15-16 FY. 16-17
Expenditure Budget Re-estimate Request
Transfers - Streets
001-6-9121-59107 Transf. to C.P. Streets

F.Y. 15-16 Budget: Street Maintenance Garage $250,000

F.Y. 15-16 Re-estimate: Street Maintenance Garage $250,000

F.Y. 16-17 Request: Street Mamntenance Garage £700,000

Corridor Entry Features $40,000 $140,000

Total Expenditure $250,000 $250,000 $140,000

01-25-16, 01-04-16
1of1






CP;I;IROLL--IOWA
SHOP
‘DINE

EXPEREEN@E

) IT'S ALL HERE

6"'1:
2

3" 1=

84"

39
8" 7
273

gt

£
1 %’1:
11 %”1:
11 %":l:

- - ————— —-—-—v——-l .
== e A=A —0
tPLA/A T
U L! | L_lz..l \.LL__.J \‘ |

ST e—12'-10"

CARROLL |OWA |
 SHOP - ‘.@'
DNE | e

EXPERIENGE

K S ALL HERE

s _ H A

‘POWER SUPPLY BY OTHERS
"‘MASONRY BY OTHERS

© THIS ORIGINAL COPYRIGHT DRAWING IS GREATED FOR YOUR PERSONAL USE IN CONNEGTION WITH PLANNED DISPLAY BY NESPER SIGNADVERTISING, INC. IT IS NOT TO BE SHOWN TO ANYONE QU
COLORS REPRESENTED ON THIS PRINT MAY NOT MATCH THE PMS GHIP, VINYL COLOR OR PAINT COLORS EXACTLY. IT IS TO BE VIEWED AS A REPRESENTATION ONLY. OWN
THE ACCEPTING PARTY ACKNOWLEDGES RESPONSIBILITY TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT.

> 5T
> : L g
e M TR 1)
| k-
X i
Bt v < 30"

17'-g"

g

ENGINEERING:

PIPE: 8" STD STEEL PIPES

DEPTH: 7'-6"WITH 36" DRILL
CONCRETE: 1.873 YRDS x2 = 3.746 YRDS
LENGTH: 25"-2"x2

L JOBDESCRIPTION:

FABRICATE AND INSTALL (1) D/F ILLUMI-
NATED ID SIGN WITH HALO LIT CHANNEL
LETTERS.

@ ToPID

TOPPER: .080 OVER ANGLE IRON
PAINTED SATIN SHADOW GRAY
CABINET: .080 OVER ANGLE IRON
PAINT: SATIN BEIGE

REVEAL: 080 OVER ANGLE [RON
HALO LIT “CITI PLAZA"

FACE: 080 ALUMINUM
RETURNS: 3" PAINTED

BACKS: CLEAR LEXAN

PAINT: SATIN ORANGE
ILLUMINATION: WHITE LEDs

@ ID CABINET

CABINET: .080 OVER ANGLE [RON
PAINTED SATIN LIGHT BEIGE

HALO LIT “EAT - DINE - EXPERIENCE”
FACE: .080 ALUMINUM

RETURNS: 3" PAINTED

BACIS: CLEAR LEXAN

PAINT: SATIN DURANODIC BRONZE
ILLUMINATION: WHITE LEDs

NON LIT LETTERS & STRIPES

EACE: ROUTED.080 ALUMINUM PAINTED
SATIN BLACK

(© POLE COVERS

ERAME: .080 OVER ANGLE IRON
PAINTED SATIN BEIGE AND SATIN BLACK
TOPPERS: .080 OVER ANGLE [RON
PAINTED SATIN ORANGE AND SATIN
SHADOW GRAY

DECORATIVE SHAPES: ROUTED 3/4"
PVC PAINTED SATIN WHITE

DESIGN #: PM-567

VER#: 4

DATE:11-22-16  DRAWNBY: AM__

SALES: PATMcALLISTER

JOB: CITI PLAZA

LOCATION: 515 NORTH ADAMS ST
CARROLL, 1A 51401

DESIGN APPROVED BY:

ITSIDE YOUR FIRM. NOR IS IT TO BE REPRODUCED, COPIED, OR EXHIBITED IN ANY FASHION,
ER TO CARRY LIABILITY INSURANCE AND OTHER NECESSARY INSURANGE ON THE ABOVE WORK UPON ACGERTANCE.





\ - shop

9V

11 %"

' mEe T = : LE7 -
g

Q,A.,T; .

——

OUDNE e
vy EXPERIENGE
" IT'S ALL HERE .-

gonil— e = @
el | 5 5k o ] 3
= == : 3
o8 it ..\:m-w:
=Y LS
o

I

76"

S ' © THIS ORIGINAL COPYRIGHT DRAWING S CREATED FOR YOUR PERSONAL USE IN CONNEGTION WITH PLANNED DISPLAY BY NESPER SIGNADVERTISING,
COLORS REPRESENTED ON THIS PRINT MAY NOT MATCH THE PMS GHIP, VINYL COLOR OR PAINT COLORS EXACTLY. IT IS TO BE VIEWED AS A REPRESENTAT
THE ACCEPTING PARTY ACKNOWLEDGES RESPONSIBILITY TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT.

-

. EXPERIENGE - |8 | e
IT'S ALL HERE ~ “'@ :, 2

i = —12-10"

1 “POWER SUPPLY BY OTHERS

ENGINEERING:

PIPE: 8”STD STEEL PIPES

DEPTH: 7'-6"WITH 36" DRILL
CONCRETE: 1.873 YRDS x2 = 3.746 YRDS
LENGTH: 25"-2"x2

I JOB/DESCRIPTION:

FABRICATE AND INSTALL (1) D/F ILLUMINATED
1D SIGN WITH ROUTED FACES.

@ ToriD
TOPPER: .080 OVER ANGLE IRON |
PAINTED SATIN SHADOW GRAY 1
CABINET: .080 OVER ANGLE IRON
PAINT: SATIN BEIGE
REVEAL:.080 OVER ANGLE IRON i
HALO LIT “CITI PLAZA” {
FACE: .080 ALUMINUM
RETURNS: 3" PAINTED
BACKS: CLEAR LEXAN
PAINT: SATIN ORANGE
ILLUMINATION: WHITE LEDs

g2

@ 1D CABINET

CABINET:.080 OVER ANGLE [RON

PAINTED SATIN LIGHT BEIGE

FACE: ROUTED .080 BACKED WITH ACRYLIC
GRAPHICS: TRANS VINYL

PAINT: SATIN DURANODIC BRONZE
ILLUMINATION: WHITE LEDs

NON LIT LETTERS & STRIPES

FACE: ROUTED.080 ALUMINUM PAINTED
SATIN ORANGE

¢—3'-0"

POLE COVERS

© ERAME: 080 OVER ANGLE IRON
PAINTED SATIN BEIGE AND SATIN BLACK
TOPPERS: .080 OVER ANGLE IRON
PAINTED SATIN ORANGE AND SATIN
SHADOW GRAY

DECORATIVE SHAPES: ROUTED 3/4"
PVC PAINTED SATIN WHITE

DECORATIVE STRIPES: 3/4” PVC PAINTED
SHADOW GRAY

17'-8"

__ﬂ

DESIGN #: PM-567 VER.#: 4

DATE: 11-22-16 DRAWN BY: AM__

SALES: PAT McALLISTER

JOB: CITI PLAZA

=+ LOCATION: 515 NORTH ADAMS ST
CARROLL, 1A 51401

DESIGN APPROVED BY:

76"

INC. [T IS NOT TO BE SHOWN TO ANYONE OUTSIDE YOUR FIRM. NOR IS IT TO BE REPRODUCED, COPIED, OR EXHIBITED IN ANY FASHION.
TION ONLY. OWNER TO CARRY LIABILITY INSURANGE AND OTHER NECESSARY INSU RANCE ON THE ABOVE WORK UPON AGCEPTANGE.





.

8'-0" )
1— e T —
70" ;
iER 3]
¢l =t 0 >
= GITI PLAZA [
3= m 4 e "I*"':".'_"‘.El:_-_l x >
e i 4 = N g ; > ”
1 ‘él]'.T'l]? Bl 'CARROLL , [OWA I
R sHeP | T
== | oW
L BIME g - EXPERIENGE | =
DXPORIENGE . | p at® e
‘ TIPS AL HERE IS ALL HERE . | T
5 3= emem e :
50"

© THIS ORIGINAL COPYRIGHT DRAWING IS CREATED FOR YOI
COLORS REPRESENTED ON THIS PRINT MAY NOT MATCH THE
THE ACGEPTING PARTY ACKNOWLEDGES RESPONSIBILITY TO

UR PERSONAL USE IN CONNECTION WITH PLANNED D

710"

PWS CHIP, VINYL COLOR OR PAINT COLORS EXACTLY.
THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT,

ENGINEERING:

PIPE: 8" STD STEEL PIPE
DEPTH: 8-0"WITH 36" DRILL
CONCRETE: 1.997 YRDS
LENGTH: 24'-4"

<30
<—1-6"
<—3-0"

2"

—20"

<2-6"

<—2'-0"

16'4"

80"

ISPLAY BY NESPER SIGN ADVERTISING, INC. [T IS NOT TO BE SHOWNTO ANYONE OUTSIDE YOUR FIRM. NOR IS IT
[T 18 TO BE VIEWED AS A REPRESENTATION ONLY. OWNER TO CARRY LIABILITY INSURANCE AND OTHER NEGES:

\JOBDESCRIPTION:

FABRICATE AND INSTALL (1) D/F NON LIT
MONUMENTSIGN.

@ ToriD

CARINET: 080 OVER ANGLE IRON

PRINT: SATIN LIGHT BEIGE

SUPPORTS: (2) 4" STD STEEL PIPES PAINTED
SATIN BURGUNDY

LETTERS: ROUTED 1/4" ALUMINUM PAINTED
SATIN BURGUNDY

TOPPERS: 080 OVER ANGLE IRON PAINTED
SATIN SHADOW GRAY AND BEIGE

@ MIDDLE CABINET

CABINET: 080 OVER ANGLE IRON
DIVIDERS: OPAQUEVINYL

PAINT: SATIN LIGHT BEIGE

LETTERS: ROUTED 1/4" ALUMINUM PAINTED
SATIN BURGUNDY

NONLIT STRIPES

EACE: ROUTED.080 ALUMINUM PAINTED
SATIN ORANGE )

(©)) POLE COVER
TOPPER:.080 OVER ANGLE IRON
PAINTED SATIN SHADOW GRAY

-MASONRY BY OTHERS

BEIGE

BURGUNDY
(7725-49)

(7725-58)

DESIGN #: PM-567 __ VER4: 4
DATE: 11-22-16 DRAWN BY: AM__
SALES: PAT McALLISTER

JOB: CITI PLAZA

LOCATION: 515 NORTH ADAMS ST

CARROLL, 1A 51401
DESIGN APPROVED BY:

DATE:

TO BE REPRODUGED, COPIED, OR EXHIBITED IN ANY FASHION,
SARY INSURANGE ON THE ABOVE WORK UPON ACGEPTANCE,






Wealcome to

Maryland
Founded T/45

Historic Dowmtowmn

PR —

Historic Dowrtown

SERTNRTT T, wTEa W
sk ’







COUNCIL MEETING
DECEMBER 27, 2016

(Please note these are draft minutes and may be amended by Council before final approval.)

The Carroll City Council met in regular session on this date at 5:15 p.m. at the Council
Chamber of the Farner Government Building. Members present: Misty Boes, Jerry Fleshner,
Clay Haley, Mike Kots, and Carolyn Siemann. Vacant: At-Large Council Seat. Absent: None.
Mayor Eric Jensen presided and City Attorney Dave Bruner was in attendance.

R e

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by the City Council. No Council action taken.
* ok ke k kKK
It was moved Haley, seconded by Kots, to approve the minutes of the December 12, 2016
council meeting as written. On roll call, all present voted aye. Vacant: At-Large Council Seat.
Absent: None. Motion carried.
* ok ok k ok Kk
It was moved by Haley, seconded by Kots, to approve the bills and claims in the amount
of $645,835.50. On roll call, all present voted aye. Vacant: At-Large Council Seat. Absent:
None. Motion carried.
* ok ok ok ok Kk
It was moved by Haley, seconded by Kots, to approve the appointment of Dr. Kyle
Ulveling and Paul Reicks to the Carroll Public Library Board of Trustees for a six-year term
ending December 31, 2022. On roll call, all present voted aye. Vacant: At-Large Council Seat.
Absent: None. Motion carried.

EE S S e S

There were no oral requests or communications from the audience.
* ok ok k kK K

It was moved by Haley, seconded by Fleshner, to select Concept A as the preferred
concept that moves City Hall functions to the Commercial Savings Bank building located at 627
N. Adams Street and expand the Library into City Hall space at the Farner Government Building
located at 112 E. 5" Street. On roll call, all present voted aye. Vacant: At-Large Council Seat.
Absent: None. Motion carried.

It was moved by Haley, seconded by Siemann, to approve Resolution No. 1688,
Accepting the Additional Services Request Proposal from OPN Architects for Reviewing the





Existing Plan and Cost Estimate for the Carroll Public Library/City Hall Feasibility Study. On
roll call, all present voted aye. Vacant: At-Large Council Seat. Absent: None. Motion carried.
* ok k k kK K

At 5:27 p.m. Mayor Jensen opened a public hearing on the Fifth Amended and Restated
Central Business District Urban Renewal Plan. Mayor Jensen closed said public hearing at 5:28
p.m.

It was moved by Fleshner, seconded by Siemann, to approve Resolution No. 1689,
Determining an Area of the City to be Blighted and Economic Development Area, and that the
Rehabilitation, Conservation, Redevelopment, Development or a Combination thereof, of such
Area is Necessary in the Interest of the Public Health, Safety or Welfare of the Residents of the
City; Designating such Area as Appropriate for Urban Renewal Projects; and Adopting the Fifth
Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan. On roll call, all present voted aye. Vacant: At-
Large Council Seat. Absent: None. Motion carried.

* ok ok k ok Kk

It was moved by Fleshner, seconded by Kots, to approve Resolution No. 1690,
Development Agreement with Biokinemetrics Holdings, LLC and DMBA Properties &
Consulting, Inc. On roll call, all present voted aye. Vacant: At-Large Council Seat. Absent:
None. Motion carried.

* ok ok k ok kk

It was moved by Haley, seconded by Kots, to adopt the FY 2018-2022 Capital
Improvement Plan (CIP). On roll call, all present voted aye. Vacant: At-Large Council Seat.
Absent: None. Motion carried.

* ok ok k ok kk

It was moved by Fleshner, seconded by Haley, to select the method of appointment to fill
the vacant at-large council seat. On roll call, all present voted aye. Vacant: At-Large Council
Seat. Absent: None. Motion carried.

It was moved by Haley, seconded by Siemann, to authorize the publishing of the notice
stating Council’s intent to fill the vacant at-large council seat by appointment at the January 9,
2017 Council meeting. On roll call, all present voted aye. Vacant: At-Large Council Seat.

Absent: None. Motion carried.

*khk Kk kKk ik





It was moved by Kots, seconded by Fleshner, to reschedule the regular council meeting
from Monday, December 25, 2017 to Tuesday, December 26, 2017. On roll call, all present

voted aye. Vacant: At-Large Council Seat. Absent: None. Motion carried.

R e

* Kk Kk Kk Kk Kk %k

Carl Rogers, Chad Hunter, and Alex Robinson, lowa State University Community Design
Lab, presented an update on the Graham Park District Master Plan. Adam Schweers, Carroll
citizen, addressed Council on this issue. No Council action taken.
*ok ok k kKK
It was moved by Fleshner, seconded by Kaots, to adjourn at 6:30 p.m. On roll call, all

present voted aye. Vacant: At-Large Council Seat. Absent: None. Motion carried.

Eric P. Jensen, Mayor
ATTEST:

Laura A. Schaefer, City Clerk






City of

112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

MEMOTO:  Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manageri}fi& o

I8
/
Ll

FROM: Laura A. Schaefer, Finance Director/City Clerk j i \

DATE: January 3, 2017

SUBJECT: F.Y.2015-2016 Annual Financial Statement Audit

Enclosed is a copy of the City audit for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. This audit was
performed by Feldmann & Company CPAs, P.C. A printed copy of the audit report will be available
at the Council meeting Monday night.

Exhibit A, pages 20 and 21, summarizes all revenues and expenses by the major governmental
activities (public safety, public works, etc.), business type activities and general receipts. Exhibit B
(pages 22-23) and Exhibit D (pages 26-27) summarize the same revenues and expenses as Exhibit A
by the major funds resulting in the ending balances as of June 30, 2016. Also, the Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs are presented on pages 78 through 80.

The City received an unqualified opinion with no required reportable conditions, in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards.

Jennifer Walkup, CPA Manager, Feldmann & Company, is scheduled to present and discuss the audit
report and answer any additional questions.

If you have any questions before Monday night, please give me a call or stop by.

RECOMMENDATION: Council consideration and acceptance of the F.Y. 2015-2016 Annual
Financial Statement Audit.






CITY OF CARROLL

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORTS
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SUPPLEMENTARY AND OTHER INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

JUNE 30, 2016

Feionaror g Conpany CFoll, FE

523 North Main Street
Carroll, lowa 51401










Table of Contents
Officials
Independent Auditor’s Report
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Basic Financial Statements:

Government-wide Financial Statements:
Cash Basis Statement of Activities and Net Position

Government Fund Financial Statements:

Statement of Cash Receipts, Disbursements and Changes in Cash Balance —

Reconciliation of the Statement of Cash Receipts, Disbursements and Changes in

Cash Balances to the Cash Basis Statement of Activities and Net Position —

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements:

Statement of Cash Receipts, Disbursements and Changes in Cash Balance —

Reconciliation of the Statement of Cash Receipts, Disbursements and Changes in

Cash Balances to the Cash Basis Statement of Activities and Net Position —
Notes to Financial Statements

Other Information:
Budgetary Comparison Schedule of Receipts, Disbursements and
Changes in Balances - Budget and Actual (Cash Basis) —

All Governmental Funds and Proprietary Funds
Notes to Other Information — Budgetary Reporting
Schedule of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability IPERS

Schedule of City’'s Contributions
Notes to Other Information — Pension Liability

Schedule of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability MFPRSI
Schedule of City’s Contributions
Notes to Other Information — Pension Liability

Supplementary Information:
Schedule of Cash Receipts, Disbursements and Changes in
Cash Balances — Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Schedule of Cash Receipts, Disbursements and Changes in
Cash Balances — Nonmajor Proprietary Funds

Schedule of Indebtedness

Bond and Note Maturities

Schedule of Cash Receipts, Disbursements and Changes in Cash Balance- Capital

Projects Funds

Schedule of Receipts by Source and Disbursements by Function —
All Government Fund Types

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Exhibit

A

Schedule

1

Page

5-7

8-18

20-21

22-23

25

26-27

28

29-46

48-49

50

51
52-53
54-55

57

58-59
60

62-63

64-65
66-67

68

70-71

72-73

75-76

77-80





Name

Adams Schweers
Eric Jensen
Michael Kots
Tom Tait

Misty Boes

Clay Haley
Carolyn Siemann

Jerry Fleshner
Brandon Vonnahme

Gerald Clausen

Laura Schaefer
Debra K. Goetzinger
Randall M. Krauel
Jack Wardell

David S. Bruner
Brad Burke

Greg Schreck

Brandie Ledford

Amber Raak, resigned
Sondra Rierson, replaced Amber Raak

Tom Louis

Jacob Fiscus

M. Carol Shields
William Polking, Jr.

John Brockelsby (Co. Representative)

Patricia Hartley
Marilyn Setzler

Robyn Greteman, resigned
Summer Parrott, replaced Greteman

Greg Siemann
Norman Hutcheson
Gene Vincent
Richard Fulton
Kevin Wittrock

City of Carroll

Officials

Title
Mayor
Mayor **
Council Member - Ward 1
Council Member - Ward 2
Council Member - Ward 2 **
Council Member - Ward 3
Council Member - Ward 4 *
*Re-elected

Mayor Pro Tempore
Council Member - At-Large
Council Member - At-Large **
** newly elected

City Manager

Retired effective July 29, 2016
City Clerk, Treas. & Finance Dir.
Deputy City Clerk
Public Works Director
Parks and Recreation Director
City Attorney
Chief of Police

Building/Fire Safety Official
Library Director

Library Trustee

Library Trustee

Library Trustee/President
Library Trustee

Library Trustee

Library Trustee

Library Trustee

Library Trustee

Library Trustee/Secretary
Library Trustee/Vice President
Library Trustee

Airport Commissioner
Airport Commissioner/Chairman
Airport Commissioner
Airport Commissioner
Airport Commissioner

Term Expires
December 31, 2015

December 31, 2017
December 31, 2017
December 31, 2015
December 31, 2019
December 31, 2017
December 31, 2015
December 31, 2019

December 31, 2017
December 31, 2019

June 30, 2016(1)

June 30, 2016 (2)
June 30, 2016 (2)
June 30, 2015 (2)
June 30, 2016(2)
Indefinite (1)
June 30, 2016

June 30, 2016 (2)
June 30, 2016(2)

resigned

December 31, 2019
December 31, 2018
December 31, 2019
December 31, 2018
December 31, 2018
December 31, 2016
December 31, 2016
December 31, 2016
December 31, 2015
December 31, 2020

December 31, 2020
December 31, 2016
December 31, 2017
December 31, 2018
December 31, 2018

(1) Not Elected - No specific term - Employment Agreement expires on the date shown.
(2) No specific term - Salary approved to the date shown.





Teonar 3 Compamsy CFoAll, FPE

523 North Main Street
Carroll, lowa 51401
(712) 792-2464

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Carroll, lowa, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and
the related Notes to Financial Statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with the cash basis of accounting described in Note 1.
This includes determining the cash basis of accounting is an acceptable basis for the
preparation of the financial statements in the circumstances. This includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing
standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the City’s preparation and fair presentation of

5





the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
City’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective cash basis financial position of the governmental activities, the
business type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of Carroll at June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in cash basis financial
position for the year then ended in accordance with the basis of accounting described in
Note 1.

Basis of Accounting

As described in Note 1, these financial statements were prepared on the basis of
cash receipts and disbursements, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Our opinions are not modified with respect
to this matter.

Other Matters
Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial
statements that collectively comprise the City of Carroll's financial statements. We
previously audited, in accordance with the standards referred to in the third paragraph of
this report, the financial statements for the nineteen years ended June 30, 2016, (which are
not presented herein) and expressed unqualified opinions on those financial statements
which were prepared on the basis of cash receipts and disbursements. The supplementary
information included in Schedules 1 through 6, is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in our audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures;
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statement or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with US general
accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated in
all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

6





The other information, Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the Budgetary Comparison
Information, the Schedule of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and
the Schedule of City’s Contributions on pages 8 through 18 and pages 48 through 60 has
not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated November 1, 2016, on our consideration of the City of Carroll's internal control over
financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
City of Carroll’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Feldmann & Company CPAs, P.C.

November 1, 2016





Management’s Discussion and Analysis





MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The City of Carroll provides this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
its financial statements. This narrative overview and analysis of the financial
activities is for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. We encourage readers to
consider this information in conjunction with the City’s financial statements, which
follow.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The City's governmental funds’ receipts decreased 11.8% or
approximately $1,760,000 from fiscal year 2015 (FY 15). The decrease is
mainly due to less debt being issued in FY 16. In FY 15, $2,890,000 of
capital loan notes were issued to be used to refund debt that was issued
in 2006 (Ashwood Business Park public improvements), defease/advance
refund debt issued in 2008 (aquatic center) and for the Street
Rehabilitation — 2014 Project. In FY 2016, only $910,000 of capital loan
notes were issued for the purchase of a street sweeper and partial funding
for both the Rec Center Weight Room Expansion Project and Street
Rehab — 2015 project.

e Disbursements increased $1,519,000, or about 12.5%, from FY 15. Debt
service and capital project expenditures were the primary reason for this
increase. The Outdoor Aquatic Center General Obligation Bond, Series
2008A was refunded in FY 16. There was a slight increase in street capital
projects, and the construction for the Rec Center Weight Room Expansion
project occurred in FY 16.

e The City’s total cash basis net position decreased about 3%, or
approximately $546,000, from June 30, 2015, to June 30, 2016. Of this
amount, the cash basis net position of the governmental activities
increased approximately $478,000 and the cash basis net position of the
business type activities decreased approximately $1,024,000.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

The annual report consists of a series of financial statements as well as
other requirements as follows:

Management’s Discussion and Analysis introduces the basic financial
statements and provides an analytical overview of the City’s financial activities.

The Government-wide Financial Statement consists of a Cash Basis
Statement of Activities and Net Position. This statement provides information

9





about the activities of the City as a whole and presents an overall view of the
City’s finances.

The Fund Financial Statements tell how governmental services were
financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund
financial statements report the City’s operations in more detail than the
government-wide financial statement by providing information about the most
significant funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information essential
to a full understanding of the data provided in the basic financial statements.

Other Information further explains and supports the financial statements
with a comparison of the City’s budget for the year and the City’s proportionate
share of the net pension liability and related contributions.

Other Supplementary Information provides detailed information about the
nonmajor governmental funds and the City’s indebtedness.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The City maintains its financial records on the basis of cash receipts and
disbursements and the financial statements of the City are prepared on that
basis. The cash basis of accounting does not give effect to accounts receivable,
accounts payable and accrued items. Accordingly, the financial statements do
not present financial position and results of operations of the funds in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Therefore, when reviewing
the financial information and discussion within this annual report, readers should
keep in mind the limitations resulting from the use of the cash basis of
accounting.

REPORTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

Government-wide Financial Statement

One of the most important questions asked about the City’s finances is “Is
the City as a whole better off or worse off as a result of the year’s activities?” The
Cash Basis Statement of Activities and Net Position reports information which
helps answer this question.

The Cash Basis Statement of Activities and Net Position presents the
City’s net position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s net position
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is
improving or deteriorating.

The Cash Basis Statement of Activities and Net Position is divided into
two kinds of activities:

10





e Governmental activities include public safety, public works, health and
social services, culture and recreation, community and economic
development, general government, debt service and capital projects.
Property taxes, user fees and state and federal grants finance most of
these activities.

e Business-type activities of the City include water utility, sanitary sewer
utility and the storm water utility system. These activities are financed
primarily by user charges.

Fund Financial Statements
The City has two kinds of funds:

1) Governmental funds account for most of the City’s basic
services. These focus on how money flows into and out of those funds
and the balances at year-end that are available for spending.
Governmental funds include: 1) the General Fund, 2) the Special
Revenue Funds such as Road Use Tax and Urban Renewal Tax
Increment, 3) the Debt Service Fund, 4) the Capital Projects Funds
and 5) the Permanent Funds. The governmental fund financial
statements provide a detailed, short-term view of the City’s general
government operations and the basic services it provides.
Governmental fund information helps determine whether there are
more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future
to finance the City’s programs.

The required financial statement for governmental funds is a Statement of Cash
Receipts, Disbursements and Changes in Cash Balances.

2) Proprietary funds account for the City’s Enterprise Funds
and the Internal Service Fund. Enterprise Funds are used to report
business-type activities. The City maintains Enterprise Funds to
provide separate information for the water, sewer and storm water
funds, considered to be major funds of the City. Internal Service Funds
are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs
internally among the City’s various functions.

The required financial statement for proprietary funds is a Statement of Cash
Receipts, Disbursements and Changes in Cash Balances.

Reconciliations between the government-wide financial statement and the fund
financial statements follow the fund financial statements.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of financial position.
The City’s cash balance for governmental activities increased from a year ago,

11





increasing from $10.079 million to $10.557 million. Our analysis below focuses
on the changes in cash basis net position of governmental activities.

Changes in Cash Basis Net Position of Governmental Activities
(Expressed in Thousand)

Receipts & Transfers:
Program Receipts:
Charges for Services & Sales
Operating Grants, Contributions and Restricted Interest
Capital Grants, Contributions and Restricted interest
General Receipts
Property Tax
Other Taxes
Franchise Tax & Fees
Unrestricted Investment Earnings
Bond Proceeds
Other General Receipts
Total Receipts

Disbursements:
Public Safety
Public Works
Health & Social Services
Culture & Recreation
Community & Economic Development
General Government
Debt Service
Capital Projects
Total Disbursements

Change in cash basis net position before transfers
Transfers, net
Change in cash basis net position

Cash basis net position beginning of the year

Cash basis net position end of year

12

2016 2015
$ 2,036 2,000
1,442 1,164

319 259

6,357 6,592

1,940 1,871

69 70

42 32

910 2,890

8 5

13,123 14,883

1,886 1,858

2,036 2,042

100 103

2,478 2,560

145 157

964 926

3,526 2,196

2,552 2,326

13,687 12,168

(564) 2,715

1,042 1,118

478 3,833

10,079 6,246

$ 10,557 10,079






snd  Receipts By Source Disbursements by Function

Proceeds \ ch Public
7% arges i Safet
Siher for Capital Y public

Projects 14%
General — @ Services 1é% Works
Receipts Other 16% 15%

1% Taxes
15% Operating

Debt

Service
Grants 26%

Health &
Social

11% \ \ Services
1%
Capital Comm &
Grants Gen. Govt n T~ Culture &
2% 7% Dvlpmnt Recreation

1% 18%

The City’s total receipts for governmental activities decreased by 11.8%
percent ($1,760,000). The total cost of all programs and services increased by
approximately $1,519,000, or about 12.5%. The decrease in receipts is mainly
due to the amount of debt issued in FY 15 ($2,890,000) compared to $910,000 of
debt issued in FY 16. In FY 15, the debt issued was to refund debt issued in
2006 (Ashwood Business Park public improvements), defease/advance refund
debt issued in 2008 (aquatic center) and for the Street Rehabilitation — 2014
Project. The decrease was offset by an increase in program receipts including an
increase in road use tax receipts and the receipt of a FEMA grant for the Fire
Department. The increase in disbursements is mainly due to debt service
payments and capital project expenditures. The Outdoor Aquatic Center General
Obligation Bond, Series 2008A was refunded in FY 16. There was a slight
increase in street capital projects. Also, the construction for the Rec Center
Weight Room Expansion project occurred in FY 16.

The City decreased the property tax rate for FY 16 by approximately 3%,
which generated approximately $235,000 less property tax revenue (including
TIF collections). The City’s total assessed valuation decreased about 0.85% from
FY 15 while the residential rollback increased 1.33% and the commercial rollback
decreased 5%.

The cost of all governmental activities this year was approximately
$13.687 million compared to approximately $12.168 million last year. However,
as shown in the Statement of Activities and Net Position on pages 20-21, the
amount taxpayers ultimately financed for these activities was only $9.890 million
because some of the cost was paid by those directly benefited from the programs
($2.04 million) or by other governments and organizations which funded certain
programs with grants, contributions and restricted interest ($1.76 million).

The City paid the remaining “public benefit” portion of governmental
activities with property tax (some of which could only be used for certain
programs) and with other receipts including hotel/motel tax, local option sales
tax, cable franchise fees, interest and other miscellaneous receipts. Overall, the

13





City’s governmental activities program receipts, including governmental aid and
fees for service, increased in FY 16 from approximately $3.423 million to $3.797

million, principally due to more operating grants and contributions received.

Business—Type Activities

Changes in Cash Basis Net Position of Business-Type Activities
(Expressed in Thousand)

Receipts & Transfers:
Program Receipts:
Charges for Services & Sales
Water
Sewer
Storm Water
General Receipts
Unrestricted Investment Earnings
Other General Receipts
Total Receipts

Disbursements:

Water

Water -  Capital Outlay

Sewer

Storm Water

Total Disbursements

Change in cash basis net position before transfers
Transfers, net
Change in cash basis net position

Cash basis net position beginning of the year

Cash basis net position end of year

2016 2015
1,399 1,375
2,047 1,894

260 257

72 78

84 66
3,862 3,670
1,089 1,034
1,988 763

620 584
147 64
3,844 2,445
18 1,225
(1,042) (1,118)
(1,024) 107
8,263 8,156
7,239 8,263

The cash balance at June 30, 2016, was $7,239,000, a decrease of
approximately $1,024,000. Revenues increased $192,000 from FY 15 mainly due
to an increase in water and sewer revenue collected. A sewer rate increase was

effective for FY 16.

Total disbursements increased by $1,399,000 or 57.2% from FY 15 due
mainly to capital project expenditures that were funded by water and storm water

receipts.

14





INDIVIDUAL MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND ANALYSIS

As the City completed the year, its governmental funds reported a
combined fund balance of $10,557,108, an increase of approximately $478,308
from last year’s total of $10,078,800. The following are the major reasons for the
changes in cash balances from the prior year for the City’s major funds.

The General Fund cash balance increased $513,564 from the prior
year to $4,063,100, which is approximately 53% of General Fund
receipts. The General Fund balances are projected to be spent
down to 25% of receipts over the next few years. This additional
funding is intended to be used for various projects and one-time
expenditures.

The Road Use Tax Fund cash balance increased by $81,918 to
$1,176,134. The City intends to use this money to upgrade the
condition of City roads.

The Local Option Sales Tax cash balance increased by $516,874
to $1,581,852. The City intends to use this money for future City
projects.

The Debt Service cash balance decreased by $1,730,217 to
$95,412. The reason for the decrease is due to the FY 15 issuance
of debt in which the proceeds defease/advance refunded the GO
Bond Series 2008A in FY 16, in the amount of $1,715,000.

The Capital Projects Fund balance on June 30, 2016, was
$2,811,588, an increase of $1,019,702 from FY15. The increase is
mainly due to the transfer of funds, federal grants and
miscellaneous donations received to be spent on construction
projects in FY16.

INDIVIDUAL MAJOR BUSINESS TYPE FUND ANALYSIS

The cash balance of the Water Utility Fund decreased by $90,270
to $1,768,565. The decrease is mainly due to accumulated cash
reserves being spent for water capital projects. (Note: FY 16 Water
Utility Fund and Water Utility Capital Improvement Fund information
is included in Exhibit D. The Water Depreciation and Water Meter
Deposit Funds are presented as non-major fund activity.)

The cash balance of the Sewer Utility Fund increased by
approximately $700,748 to $2,351,954. The accumulation of cash
reserves is for increased operating costs and future capital
expenditures. (Note: FY 16 Sewer Utility Fund information in Exhibit
D only includes the sewer operations. The Sewer Depreciation and

15





Sewer Capital Improvement Funds are presented as non-major
fund activity.)

e The cash balance of the Storm Water Utility Fund increased
approximately $3,061 to $631,863. The accumulation of cash
reserves is for future capital expenditures. (Note: FY 16 Storm
Water Utility Fund information in Exhibit D only includes the storm
water operations. The Storm Water Capital Improvement Fund is
presented as a non-major fund activity.)

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

In accordance with the Code of lowa, the City Council annually adopts a
budget following required public notice and hearings for all funds. Although the
budget document presents functional disbursements by fund, the legal level of
control is at the aggregated function level, not at the fund or fund type level. The
budget may be amended during the year utilizing similar statutorily prescribed
procedures. Over the course of the year, the City amended its budget two times.
The first amendment was approved on November 23, 2015, and resulted in an
increase in disbursements (including transfers) of approximately $2,227,695 and
an increase in revenues and other financing sources of approximately $191,955.
The amendment was primarily to account for various capital projects including
Graham Park band shell improvements and basketball courts, Rec Center
building improvements, airport runway repairs and grant reimbursement and the
refunding of the Aquatic Center GO bonds, Series 2008A. The second
amendment was approved on May 23, 2016, and resulted in an increase in
disbursements (including transfers) of approximately $1,920,794 and an increase
in revenues and other financing sources of approximately $1,664,994. The
amendment was primarily to account for bond expenses for the 2016A debt
issuance, rec center improvements and transfers to fund multiple capital projects.

After the budget amendments, The City’s receipts were $354,000 less than
budgeted. This was primarily due to grant money budgeted and not received for
street and park and recreation projects that have not been completed as of the
end of FY 16. Total disbursements were $5.3 million less than the amended
budget. This was primarily due to the delay of some capital purchases,
unfinished construction projects and less than anticipated operating expenses.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

At year-end, the City had approximately $8,371,000 in bonds and other
long-term debt compared to approximately $9,035,000 last year as shown below.

16





QOutstanding Debt at Year-End
(Expressed in Thousands)

2016 2015

General Obligation Bonds $ 310 $ 715
General Obligation Capital Loan Notes 2,295 2,005
Sewer Revenue Bonds 5,766 6,315
Total $8,371 $9,035

Debt decreased as a result of paying scheduled annual principal
payments.

The Constitution of the State of lowa limits the amount of general
obligation debt that cities can issue to 5 percent of the assessed value of all
taxable property within the City’s corporate limits. The City’s outstanding general
obligation debt of $2,605,000 is well below the City’s $37.9 million legal debt
limit. There is a pay down schedule on this debt with full retirement within 7 years
for all the issuances except for the sewer revenue bonds, which have a
retirement within 9 years (2025).

More detailed information about the City’s long term liabilities is presented
in Note 3 of the financial statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The City’s citizens and elected and appointment officials considered many
factors when setting the 2017 fiscal year budget and the associated tax rates and
fees for services. One of those factors is the local economy. The regional
economy is stable. Unemployment was at a rate of about 3.0% (January 2016
Local Area Unemployment Statistics for Carroll County obtained from lowa
Workforce Development) which is down slightly from the January 2014
unemployment rate of 3.4%. This is compared to the State’s unemployment rate
of 3.5% (January 2016) and the national rate of 4.9% (January 2016).

The City is continuously pursuing new revenue sources including regional,
state and federal grants. The 1% local option sales tax has generated revenue of
approximately $1.4 million in FY 16 with estimates from the State of lowa
Department of Revenue to be about the same for the next fiscal year (FY 17).

The Fiscal Year 2017 (FY 17) budget includes a slightly lower property tax
levy at $11.57672 per $1,000 taxable value (FY 16 levy $11.58236). With taxable
valuations increasing slightly by about 0.38%, property tax receipts (excluding
TIF collections) to finance programs we currently offer are expected to increase
approximately $62,000.

17





Budgeted revenues are expected to be approximately $105,600 more than final
FY16 budget mainly due to an increase of intergovernmental receipts, charges
for services and debt proceeds. Budgeted disbursements are expected to be
about $495,000 less than FY 16 original budgeted disbursements due mainly to
less business type expenses.

If budget estimates are realized, the City’s budgeted cash balance is expected to
decrease approximately $1.9 million by the close of FY 17.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers,
customers and creditors with a general overview of the City’s finances and to
show the City’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions
about this report or need additional financial information, contact Laura Schaefer,
City Clerk, 112 E. 5™ Street, Carroll, IA 51401,

18





City of Carroll

Basic Financial Statements

19





City of Carroll
Statement of Activities and
Net Position - Cash Basis
Year ended June 30, 2016

Functions/Programs Expenses
Governmental Activities
Public Safety Program $ 1,885,722.64
Public Works Program 2,035,648.22
Health and Social Services Program 100,325.00
Culture and Recreation Program 2,478,271.31
Community & Economic Development Program 145,531.69
General Government 964,199.71
Debt Service 3,526,090.38
Capital Projects 2,551,695.07
Total governmental activities 13,687,484.02
Business Type Activities
Water 3,076,994.71
Sewer 619,971.30
Storm Water 147,529.50
Total business type activities 3,844,495.51
Total $ 17,531,979.53

General Receipts:
Property Taxes levied for:
General purpose
Debt Service
Property Tax Replacement
Hotel Motel Tax
Local Option Sales Tax
Franchise taxes and fees
Unrestricted investment earnings
Bond proceeds
Miscellaneous
Transfers

Total general receipts and transfers
Changes in Cash Balance

Cash Balance beginning of year
Cash Balance end of year

Cash Basis Net Position

Restricted:
Nonexpendable - Cemetery Perpetual Care
- Rec Center Trust
Expendable - Debt Service
- Urban Renewal Purposes
Streets - expendable
Other purposes - expendable
Unrestricted

Total Cash Basis Net Position

20





Program Revenues

Exhibit A

Net (Disbursements) Receipts

Operating Grants
Contributions

Capital Grants
Contributions

Charges for and Restricted and Restricted Governmental Business Type
Services Interest Interest Activities Activities Total
$ 155,426.73 % 73,79758 % - $ (1,656,498.33) $ - $ (1,656,498.33)
583,068.40 1,261,383.90 - (191,195.92) - (191,195.92)
46,370.00 - - (53,955.00) - (53,955.00)
1,215,564.82 97,183.61 10,000.00 (1,155,522.88) - (1,155,522.88)
1,350.00 - - (144,181.69) - (144,181.69)
33,736.53 5,137.40 - (925,325.78) - (925,325.78)
- 4,666.89 - (3,521,423.49) - (3,521,423.49)
- - 309,399.00 - (2,242,296.07) - (2,242,296.07)
2,035,516.48 1,442,169.38 319,399.00 (9,890,399.16) - (9,890,399.16)
1,398,764.20 - - - (1,678,230.51) (1,678,230.51)
2,047,445.38 - - - 1,427,474.08 1,427,474.08
260,109.03 - - - 112,579.53 112,579.53
3,706,318.61 - - - (138,176.90) (138,176.90)
$ 574183509 $ 1442169.38 $ 319,399.00 (9,890,399.16) (138,176.90) (10,028,576.06)
5,705,283.67 - 5,705,283.67
651,243.75 - 651,243.75
280,812.21 280,812.21
259,272.37 - 259,272.37
1,400,001.75 - 1,400,001.75
69,352.47 - 69,352.47
42,216.47 71,847.89 114,064.36
910,000.00 - 910,000.00
8,167.03 84,372.37 92,539.40
1,042,357.00 (1,042,357.00) -
10,368,706.72 (886,136.74) 9,482,569.98
478,307.56 (1,024,313.64) (546,006.08)

10,078,800.17

8,263,420.94

18,342,221.11

$ 10,557,107.73

$ 7,239,107.30

$ 17,796,215.03

$ 443,188.70
32,125.98
95,412.23
60,644.62

3,591,351.35
3,559,918.90
2,774,465.95

7,239,107.30

$  443,188.70
32,125.98
95,412.23
60,644.62
3,591,351.35
3,559,918.90
10,013,573.25

$ 10,557,107.73

$ 7,239,107.30

$ 17,796,215.03

See notes to financial statements.

21





City of Carroll
Statement of Cash Receipts, Disbursements
and Changes in Cash Balances
Governmental Funds
Year ended June 30, 2016

Special Special
Revenue Revenue
Local Option
General Road Use Tax Sales Tax
Receipts:
Property tax $ 3,983,734.14 $ - -
Other Taxes 328,624.84 1,400,001.75
Use of money and property 61,246.70 6,885.06
Licenses and permits 82,998.16 -
Intergovernmental 311,608.43 1,248,521.27
Charges for service 1,714,800.72 -
Fines and fees 69,564.35 -
Miscellaneous 173,634.92 1,333.06 -
Total receipts 6,726,212.26 1,249,854.33 1,406,886.81
Disbursements:
Public Safety 1,928,942.56 -
Public Works 1,185,276.00 879,915.97
Health and Social Services 100,325.00 -
Culture and Recreation 2,496,023.29 -
Community and Economic Development 143,598.19 -
General Government 974,943.53 -
Debt Service - -
Capital Projects - -
Total disbursements 6,829,108.57 879,915.97 -
Excess (deficiency) of receipts
over (under) disbursements (102,896.31) 369,938.36 1,406,886.81
Other financing sources (uses):
Bond/note proceeds - -
Operating transfers in 873,450.19 136,979.90 9,716.95
Operating transfers(out) (256,990.37) (425,000.00) (899,730.00)
Total other financing sources (uses) 616,459.82 (288,020.10) (890,013.05)
Excess (deficiency) of receipts and other financing
sources over disbursements and other financing
uses 513,563.51 81,918.26 516,873.76
Cash balance beginning of year 3,549,536.07 1,094,215.58 1,064,977.79
Cash balance end of year 4,063,099.58 1,176,133.84 1,581,851.55
Cash Basis Fund Balances
Unspendable-
Permanent fund-Cemetary Perpetual Care - - -
-Rec Center Trust - - -
Restricted for Debt Service - - -
Streets - 1,176,133.84 -
Urban Renewal purposes - - -
Other purposes 289,154.63 1,581,851.55
Committed 571,285.00 -
Assigned 302,778.00
Unassigned 2,899,881.95 - -
Total cash basis fund balances 4,063,099.58 1,176,133.84 1,581,851.55

22






Exhibit B

Other
Nonmajor
Debt Capital Governmental
Service Projects Funds Total

651,243.75 $ - $ 1,721,549.53 6,356,527.42
- - - 1,728,626.59
4,666.89 5,007.73 3,581.98 81,388.36
- - - 82,998.16
30,615.52 299,399.00 55,374.63 1,945,518.85
- - 6,050.00 1,720,850.72
- - - 69,564.35
- 20,000.00 32,992.15 227,960.13
686,526.16 324,406.73 1,819,548.29 12,213,434.58
- - 9,388.65 1,938,331.21
- - - 2,065,191.97
- - - 100,325.00
- 283.05 24,808.15 2,521,114.49
- - 1,933.50 145,531.69
- - - 974,943.53
3,526,090.38 - - 3,526,090.38
- 2,551,695.07 - 2,551,695.07
3,526,090.38 2,551,978.12 36,130.30 13,823,223.34
(2,839,564.22) (2,227,571.39) 1,783,417.99 (1,609,788.76)
- 910,000.00 - 910,000.00
1,109,347.53 2,346,990.37 - 4,476,484.94
- (9,716.95) (1,842,690.62) (3,434,127.94)
1,109,347.53 3,247,273.42 (1,842,690.62) 1,952,357.00
(1,730,216.69) 1,019,702.03 (59,272.63) 342,568.24
1,825,628.92 1,791,885.75 752,556.06 10,078,800.17
95,412.23 $ 2,811,587.78 $ 693,283.43 10,421,368.41
- $ - $ 443,188.70 443,188.70
- - 32,125.98 32,125.98
95,412.23 - - 95,412.23
- - - 1,176,133.84
- - 60,644.62 60,644.62
- - 1,871,006.18
- 2,811,587.78 - 3,382,872.78
- - 157,324.13 460,102.13
- - - 2,899,881.95
95,412.23 $ 2,811,587.78 $ 693,283.43 10,421,368.41

See notes to financial statements.





24

City of Carroll





City of Carroll

Exhibit C

Reconciliation of the Statement of Cash Receipts, Disbursements

and Changes in Cash Balances

to the Cash Basis Statement of Activities and Net Position

Governmental Funds

As of and for the year ended June 30, 2016

Total governmental funds cash balances (page 23)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Cash Basis
Statement of Activities and Net Position are different because:

The Internal Service Fund is used by management to charge the
costs of health insurance and self-funding of the City’s health
insurance benefit plan to individual funds. A portion of the cash
balance of the Internal Service Fund is included in the
governmental activities in the Cash Basis Statement of Activities
and Net Position.

Cash Basis net position of Governmental activities (page 21)
Change in cash balances (page 23)

Amounts reported for business type activities in the Cash Basis
Statement of Activities and Net Position are different because:

The Internal Service Fund is used by management to charge the
costs of health insurance and self-funding of the City’s health
insurance benefit plan to individual funds. A portion of the change
in the cash balance of the Internal Service Fund is reported with the
governmental activities in the Cash Basis Statement of Activities
and Net Position.

Change in cash basis net position of governmental activities (page
21)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

$10,421,368.41

135,739.32

$10,557,107.73

$ 342,568.24

135,739.32

$ 478,307.56
25





City of Carroll
Statement of Cash Receipts, Disbursements
and Changes in Cash Balances
Proprietary Funds
Year ended June 30, 2016

Operating receipts:
Charges for service
Total operating receipts

Operating disbursements:
Governmental activities:
Public Safety
Public works
Cultural and recreational
General govenment
Business-type activities:

Total operating disbursements
Excess (deficiency) of operating receipts
over (under) operating disbursements

Non-operating receipts (disbursements)
Use of money and property
Miscellaneous
Capital Outlay
Net non-operating receipts (disbursements)

Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers (out)
Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess of receipts and other financing sources
over disbursements and other financing uses

Cash balance beginning of year
Cash balance end of year

Cash Basis Fund Balances

Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unrestricted
Total cash basis fund balances

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
26

Major Fund Major Fund
Water Water Capital Impr
$ 1,398,764.20  $ -
1,398,764.20 -
1,081,620.59
1,081,620.59
317,143.61
47,411.28 2,014.05
50,644.07
- (1,988,346.15)
98,055.35 (1,986,332.10)
873,920.00 526,871.50
(1,379,388.50) -
(505,468.50) 526,871.50

(90,269.54)
1,858,834.65

(1,459,460.60)
1,698,695.32

$ 1,768,565.11

$ 239,234.72

$ -
61,020.00
39,894.00
1,667,651.11

$ -
145,752.21

93,482.51

$ 1,768,565.11

$ 239,234.72






Exhibit D

Internal
Enterprise Funds Service
Major Fund Major Fund Other Non-Major Employee
Sewer Storm Water Proprietary Total Health
$ 2,047,445.38 $ 260,109.03 $ - $ 3,706,318.61 $649,579.66
2,047,445.38 260,109.03 - 3,706,318.61 649,579.66
- - - - 134,604.24
) - - - 80,942.67
- - - - 137,367.85
- - - - 47,623.85
627,902.45 6,584.00 10,850.00 1,726,957.04 103,040.08
627,902.45 6,584.00 10,850.00 1,726,957.04 503,578.69
1,419,542.93 253,525.03 (10,850.00) 1,979,361.57 146,000.97
9,776.29 3,131.92 9,514.35 71,847.89 1,491.53
19,673.77 1,404.53 12,650.00 84,372.37 -
- - (140,945.50) (2,129,291.65) -
29,450.06 4,536.45 (118,781.15) (1,973,071.39) 1,491.53
- - 240,000.00 1,640,791.50 -
(748,245.00)  (255,000.00) (300,515.00) (2,683,148.50) -
(748,245.00)  (255,000.00) (60,515.00) (1,042,357.00) -
700,747.99 3,061.48 (190,146.15) (1,036,066.82) 147,492.50
1,651,206.05 628,801.08 2,425,883.84 8,263,420.94 292,426.78
$ 2,351,954.04 $ 631,862.56 $ 2,235,737.69 $ 7,227,354.12 $439,919.28
$ - $ - $ - $ - $439,919.28
44,000.00 - 402,186.00 652,958.21 -
36,019.00 - - 75,913.00 -
2,271,935.04 631,862.56 1,833,551.69 6,498,482.91 -
$ 2,351,954.04 $ 631,862.56 $ 2,235,737.69 $ 7,227,354.12 $439,919.28
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 27





Exhibit E
City of Carroll

Reconciliation of the Statement of Cash Receipts, Disbursements

And Changes in Cash Balances

to the Cash Basis Statement of Activities and Net Position

Proprietary Funds
As of and for the year ended June 30, 2016

Total enterprise funds cash balances (page 27)

Amounts reported for business type activities in the Cash Basis
Statement of Activities and Net Position are different because:

The Internal Service Fund is used by management to charge the
costs of health insurance and self-funding of the City’'s health
insurance benefit plan to individual funds. A portion of the cash
balance of the Internal Service Fund is included in the business type
activities in the Cash Basis Statement of Activities and Net Position.

Cash Basis net position of Business type activities (page 21)
Change in cash balances (page 27)

Amounts reported for business type activities in the Cash Basis
Statement of Activities and Net Position are different because:

The Internal Service Fund is used by management to charge the
costs of health insurance and self-funding of the City’'s health
insurance benefit plan to individual funds. A portion of the change in
the cash balance of the Internal Service Fund is reported with the
business type activities in the Cash Basis Statement of Activities and
Net Position.

Change in cash basis net position of business type activities (page
21)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

28

$ 7,227,354.12

11,753.18

$7,239,107.30

$(1,036,066.82)

11,753.18

$(1,024,313.64)






City of Carroll
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2016
Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The City of Carroll is a political subdivision of the State of lowa located in Carroll County. It
was first incorporated in 1869 and operates under the Home Rule provisions of the
Constitution of lowa. The City operates under the Mayor-Council form of government with
the Mayor and Council Members elected on a non-partisan basis. The City provides
numerous services to citizens including public safety, public works, health and human
services, culture and recreation, community and economic developments, and general
government services. The City also provides water, sewer and storm water utilities for its
citizens.

A. Reporting Entity

For financial reporting purposes, the City of Carroll has included all funds, organizations,
agencies, boards, commissions and authorities. The City has also considered all
potential component units for which it is financially accountable, and other organizations
for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the City are such that
exclusion would cause the City’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has set forth criteria to be considered in
determining financial accountability. These criteria include appointing a voting majority of
an organization’s governing body, and (1) the ability of the City to impose its will on that
organization or (2) the potential for the organization to provide specific benefits to, or
impose specific financial burdens on the City. The City has no component units that
meet the Governmental Accounting Standards Board criteria.

Jointly Governed Organizations

The City also participates in several jointly governed organizations that provide goods or
services to the citizenry of the City but do not meet the criteria of a joint venture since
there is no ongoing financial interest or responsibility by the participating governments.
City officials are members of the following boards and commissions: Carroll County
Assessor's Conference Board, Carroll County Solid Waste Commission, City/County
Communications Committee, Carroll County Regional Planning Commission, County
Emergency Management Commission and County Joint E911 Service Board, and
Carroll Area Access Television (CAAT) Board, and Carroll Foundation.

B. Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statements — The Cash Basis Statement of Activities and
Net Position reports information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City. For the
most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from this statement.
Governmental activities, which are supported by tax and intergovernmental revenues,
are reported separately from business type activities, which rely to a significant extent on

29





30

fees and charges for service.

The Cash Basis Statement of Activities and Net position presents the City’s
nonfiduciary net position. Net position is reported in following categories/components:

Nonexpendable restricted net position is subject to externally imposed
stipulations which require them to be maintained permanently by the City,
including the City’s Permanent Fund.

Expendable restricted net position results when constraints placed on the use of
cash balances are either externally imposed or imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net position consists of cash balances not meeting the
definition of the preceding categories. Unrestricted net position is
often subject to the constraints imposed by management which can be
removed or modified.

The Cash Basis Statement of Activities and Net Position demonstrates the degree to
which the direct disbursements of a given function are offset by program receipts.
Direct disbursements are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function.
Program receipts include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function and 2)
grants, contributions, and interest on investments that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Property tax and other
items not properly included among program receipts are reported instead as general
receipts.

Fund Financial Statements - Separate financial statements are provided for
governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual governmental funds and
major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported
as nonmajor governmental funds.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. All general tax receipts
from general and emergency levies and other receipts not allocated by law or
contractual agreement to some other fund are accounted for in this fund. From the
fund are paid the general operating disbursements, the fixed charges and the capital
improvement costs that are not paid through other funds.

Special Revenue

Road Use Tax is used to account for the road use tax allocation from the State of
lowa to be used for road construction and maintenance.

Local Option Sales Tax is used to account for a voter approved optional sales tax
imposed on all sales within the electing jurisdiction. Revenue from this tax must be
spent on the specific purposes forth in the election ballot if other than property tax





relief.

The Debt Service Fund is utilized to account for property tax and other receipts to be
used for the payment of interest and principal on the City’s general long term debt.

The Capital Projects Funds are utilized to account for all resources used in the
acquisition and construction of capital facilities, with the exception of those that are
financed through enterprise funds.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Enterprise, Water Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the City’s
water system.

The Enterprise, Sewer Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the City’s
waste water treatment and sanitary sewer system.

The Storm Water Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the City’s storm
water collection system.

The City also reports the following additional proprietary fund:

An Internal Service Fund is utilized to account for the financing of health insurance
services provided to other departments on a cost reimbursement basis.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The City of Carroll maintains its financial records on the basis of cash receipts and
disbursements and the financial statements of the City are prepared on that basis. The
cash basis of accounting does not give effect to accounts receivable, accounts payable
and accrued items. Accordingly, the financial statements do not present financial
position and results of operations of the funds in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the City funds certain programs by a combination
of specific cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants and general receipts.
Thus, when program disbursements are paid, there are both restricted and unrestricted
cash basis net positions available to finance the program. It is the City’s policy to first
apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs, followed by categorical
block grants and then by general receipts.

When a disbursement in governmental funds can be paid using either restricted or
unrestricted resources, the City’s policy is generally to first apply the disbursement toward
restricted fund balance and then to less-restrictive classifications — committed, assigned
and then unassigned fund balances.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating receipts and disbursements from non-operating
items. Operating receipts and disbursements generally result from providing services
and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal
ongoing operations. All receipts and disbursements not meeting this definition are

31





reported as non-operating receipts and disbursements.

D. Governmental Cash Basis Fund Balances:

In the governmental fund financial statements, cash basis fund balances are classified as
follows:

Nonspendable — Amounts which cannot be spent because they are legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted — Amounts restricted to specific purposes when constraints placed on the
use of the resources are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, or state or
federal laws or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
Assigned - Amounts the Council intends to use for specific purposes.

Unassigned — All amounts not included in other spendable classifications.

E. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The budgetary comparison and related disclosures are reported as Other Information.
During the year ended June 30, 2016, there were no disbursements that exceeded the
amounts budgeted in the general government and business type activities functions.

Note 2 - Cash and Pooled Investments

32

The City’s deposits in banks at June 30, 2016, were entirely covered by federal depository
insurance, or by the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the Code of lowa.
This chapter provides for additional assessments against the depositories to insure there will
be no loss of public funds.

The City is authorized by statute to invest public funds in obligations of the United States
government, its agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit or other evidences of
deposit at federally insured depository institutions approved by the City Council; prime eligible
bankers acceptances; certain high rated commercial paper; perfected repurchase
agreements; certain registered open-end management investment companies; certain joint
investment trusts; and warrants or improvement certificates of a drainage district.

At June 30, 2016, the City had no investments in U S Treasury Notes as these were used to
defease the 2008A General Obligation Notes on June 1, 2016, paying it in full.

Interest rate risk — The City’s investment policy limits the investment of operating funds (funds
expected to be expended in the current budget year or within 15 months of receipt) in
instruments that mature within 397 days. Funds not identified as operating funds may be
invested in investments with maturities longer than 397 days but the maturities shall be
consistent with the needs and use of the City.






Note 3 - Bonds and Notes Payable

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds, sewer revenue
bonds and capital loan notes are as follows:

General Obligation

Year Bonds and Sewer General Obligation

Ending Revenue Bonds Capital Loan Notes Total

June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2017 876,000 103,075 420,000 28,923 1,296,000 131,998
2018 584,000 91,000 520,000 26,038 1,104,000 117,038
2019 601,000 80,780 260,000 21,228 861,000 102,008
2020 619,000 70,263 265,000 17,978 884,000 88,240
2021 639,000 59,430 270,000 14,400 909,000 73,830
2022 659,000 48,248 280,000 10,080 939,000 58,328
2023 678,000 36,715 280,000 5,180 958,000 41,895
2024 699,000 24,850 - - 699,000 24,850
2025 721,000 12,618 - - 721,000 12,618

2022-25 2,757,000 122,430 560,000 15,260 4,226,000 211,520

$ 6,076,000 $ 526,978 $ 2,295,000 $ 123,825 $ 8,371,000 $ 650,803

The Code of lowa requires that principal and interest on general obligation bonds be paid
from the Debt Service fund.

The resolutions providing for the issuance of the general obligation bonds include the
following provisions:

The funds to pay principal and interest will be provided from the levied direct annual tax,
except for the sewer revenue bonds that are paid with revenue generated by the sewer
enterprise fund.

General Obligation, Revenue and Capital Loan Notes

On June 18, 2008, the City issued $3,660,000 in General Obligation Bonds with an interest
rate range of 2.35% to 4.2% to defray the cost of the construction of the outdoor aquatic
center and construction and installation of roadway and utility improvements including
sanitary sewers, water main, and storm sewers within the Oak Park Subdivision Plat No. 2
Urban Renewal Area and the Westfield Urban Renewal Area of the City. The City's
designated paying agent, Bankers Trust Company, N.A., Des Moines, lowa, will pay
principal on the bonds payable annually each June 1, beginning June 1, 2009, and the
interest on the bonds, payable initially December 1, 2008, and thereafter on each June 1
and December 1. These bonds were crossover advanced refunded on April 23, 2015, with
proceeds invested by Bankers Trust. Bonds were redeemed on June 1, 2016 using the US
Treasury Notes held by Bankers Trust as bond agent for the City.

The City issued $11,000,000, Revenue Capital Loan Notes, Series 2003, during the year
ended June 30, 2007. Capital Loan Notes totaling $8,000,000 were issued December 23,
2003, and an additional issue on June 9, 2004, of $3,000,000. These notes will be used to
defray the costs of wastewater treatment plant improvements. Interest rate is 3.00%.

33





34

Interest payments are due semiannually beginning June 1, 2004. Principal and interest
payments are paid semiannually starting June 1, 2006. In July 2015 the lowa Finance
Authority negotiated a reduced interest to 1.75% for payments starting in fiscal year 2015.

On August 12, 2014, the City issued $1,120,000 in General Obligation Bonds with an
interest rate ranging 0.40% to 0.70%. The net proceeds were used to pay for construction
and reconstruction costs associated with the Street Resurfacing — 2014 Project.
Additionally a portion of the proceeds were used to current refund the $310,000 of the
City’s outstanding General Obligation Capital Loan Notes Series 2006, maturing June 1,
2015 through 2021. The City’s designated Paying Agent, Bankers Trust Company, N.A.
Des Moines, lowa, will pay principal and interest on the Bonds, interest payable initially on
December 1, 2014 and thereafter each December 1 and June 1. Principal initially payable
June 1, 2015 and thereafter on each June 1, through 2017.

On June 27, 2013, the City issued $1,235,000 in General Obligation Capital Loan Notes,
Series 2015, with an interest rate range of .400% to .550%. The net proceeds were
used to pay the costs of acquiring and equipping a Fire Department tanker truck and
reconstruction repair and improvements to the roof of the Carroll Recreation Center.
Additionally a portion of the proceeds will be used to current refund $675,000 of the
City’s outstanding GO Capital Loan Notes Series 2005, maturing June 1, 2015 through
2016. The City’s designated Paying Agent, Bankers Trust Company, N.A. Des Moines,
lowa, will pay principal and interest on the Notes, interest payable initially on, December
1, 2013, and thereafter interest and principal on each June 1 and December 1, through
2016.

On April 23, 2015, the City issued $1,770,000 in General Obligation Capital Loan Notes,
Series 2015A, with an interest rate range of .750% to 1.850%. The net proceeds were
used to defease/advance refund the GO Bond Series 2008A, in the amount of
$1,715,000.00. The City’'s designated Paying Agent, Bankers Trust Company, N.A.,
Des Moines, lowa, will pay principal and interest on the Notes; interest payable initially
on December 1, 2015, and thereafter interest on each June 1 and December 1, through
2023, principal paid annually starting June 1, 2017.

On March 23, 2016, the City issued $910,000 in General Obligation Capital Loan Notes,
Series 2016A, with an interest rate range of .450% to .850%. The net proceeds were
used to pay costs of weight room expansion at Rec Center, street improvements and
acquisition of a street sweeper. The City’s designated Paying Agent, Bankers Trust
Company, N.A., Des Moines, lowa, will pay principal and interest on the Notes; interest
payable initially on June 1, 2016, and thereafter interest on each June 1 and December
1, through 2018, principal paid annually starting June 1, 2016.

Sewer Revenue Notes

The City has pledged future sewer customer receipts, net of specific operating
disbursements, to repay $11,000,000 of sewer revenue notes issued in FY 2004 with
$8,000,000 issued December 2003 and $3,000,000 issued June 2004. Proceeds from the
notes provided financing for the construction of the wastewater treatment plant
improvements and sanitary relief sewer improvements. The notes are payable solely from
customer net receipts and are payable through 2025. Annual principal and interest
payments on the notes are expected to require about 53% of net receipts. The total





principal and interest remaining to be paid on the notes is $6,290,808. For the current year,
principal and interest paid and total customer net receipts were $659,513 and $1,381,598,
respectively.

The resolutions providing for the issuance of the revenue notes include the following
provisions:

(a) The notes will only be redeemed from the future earnings of the sewer system activity
and the note holders hold a lien on the future earnings of the fund.

(b) Sufficient monthly transfers shall be made to a separate sewer revenue note sinking
account within the Sewer Fund for the purpose of making the note principal and
interest payments when due.

(c) All funds remaining in the sewer account at the close of the month may be deposited
in any of the funds created by the resolutions, to pay for extraordinary repairs or
replacements to the sewer system, or for any lawful purpose.

Note 4 - Pension Plan

Plan Description - IPERS membership is mandatory for employees of the City, except
for those covered by another retirement system. Employees of the City are provided
with pensions through a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan
administered by lowa Public Employees’ Retirement System (IPERS). IPERS issues a
stand-alone financial report which is available to the public by mail at 7401 Register
Drive P.O. Box 9117, Des Moines, lowa 50306-9117 or at www.ipers.org.

IPERS benefits are established under lowa Code chapter 97B and the administrative
rules thereunder. Chapter 97B and the administrative rules are the official plan
documents. The following brief description is provided for general informational
purposes only. Refer to the plan documents for more information.

Pension Benefits — A regular member may retire at normal retirement age and receive
monthly benefits without an early retirement reduction. Normal retirement age is age 65,
any time after reaching age 62 with 20 or more years of covered employment, or when the
member’s years of service plus the member’'s age at the last birthday equals or exceeds
age 88, whichever comes first. These qualifications must be met on the member’s first
month of entitlement to benefits Members cannot begin receiving retirement benefits
before age 55. The formula used to calculate a Regular member’s monthly IPERS benefit
includes:

e A multiplier (based on years of service).

e The member’s highest five year average salary, except for members with service
before June 30, 2012, will use the highest three-year average salary as of that date
if it is greater than the highest five-year average salary.

35





36

If a member retires before normal retirement age, the member’s monthly retirement benefit
will be permanently reduced by an early retirement reduction. The early retirement
reduction is calculated differently for service before and after July 1, 2012. For service
earned before July 1, 2012, the reduction is .25 percent for each month that the member
receives benefits before the member’s earliest normal retirement age. For service earned
starting July 1, 2012, the reduction is .50 percent for each month that the member receives
benefits before age 65.

Generally, once a member selects a benefits option, a monthly benefit is calculated and
remains the same for the rest of the member’s lifetime. However, to combat the effects of
inflation, retirees who began receiving benefits prior to July 1990 receive a guaranteed
dividend with their regular November benefit payments.

Disability and Death Benefits — A vested member who is awarded federal Social Security
disability or Railroad Retirement disability benefits is eligible to claim IPERS benefits
regardless of age. Disability benefits are not reduced for early retirement. If a member
dies before retirement, the member’s beneficiary will receive a lifetime annuity or a lump
sum payment equal to the present actuarial value of the member’'s accrued benefit or
calculated with a set formula, whichever is greater. When a member dies after retirement,
death benefits depend on the benefit option the member selected at retirement.

Contributions — Contribution rates are established by IPERS following the annual actuarial
valuation which applies IPERS Contribution Rate Funding Policy and Actuarial
Amortization Method. State statute limits the amount rates can increase or decrease each
year to 1 percentage point. IPERS Contribution Rate Funding Policy requires that the
actuarial contribution rate be determined by using the “entry age normal” actuarial cost
method and the actuarial assumptions and methods approved by the IPERS Investment
Board. The actuarial contribution rate covers normal cost plus the unfunded actuarial
liability payment base on a 30-year amortization period. The payment to amortize the
unfunded actuarial liability is determined as a level percentage of payroll based on the
Actuarial Amortization Method adopted by the Investment Board.

In fiscal year 2016, pursuant to the required rate, Regular members contributed 5.95
percent of covered payroll and the City contributed 8.93 percent for a total of 14.88
percent.

The city’s contributions to IPERS for the year ended June 30, 2016, were $218,368.12.

Net Pension Liability, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions — At June 30, 2016, the City’s liability
for its proportionate share of the collective net pension liability totaled $ 1,601,825. The net
pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total pension liability used

to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that
date. The City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the City’s share of
contributions to IPERS relative to the contributions of all IPERS participating employers. At
June 30, 2015, the City’s proportion was 0.0324224 percent, which was a decrease of
0.002625 percent from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2014.






For the year ended June 30, 2016, the City’s pension expense, deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources totaled of $135,085, $307,969 and $372,979
respectively.

There were no non-employer contributing entities to IPERS.
Actuarial Assumptions — The Total pension liability in the June 30, 2015, actuarial valuation

was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in
the measurement, as follows:

Rate of inflation 3.00 percent per annum
(effective June 30, 2014)

Rate of Salary increase 4.00 to 17.00 percent, average, including inflation.
(effective June 30, 2010) Rates vary by membership group.

Long-term investment rate of return 7.50 percent, compounded annually, net of
(effective June 30, 1996) investment expense, including inflation

Wage Growth 4.00% per annum, based on 3.00% inflation and
(effective June 30, 1990) 1.00% real wage inflation

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 20, 2015, valuation were based on the results
of the actuarial experience studies with dates corresponding to those listed above.

Mortality rates were based on the RP 2000 Mortality Table for Males or Females, as
appropriate, with adjustment for mortality improvements on Scale AA.

The long term expected rate of return on IPERS investments was determined using a
building block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for
each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long term expected
rate of return by weighing the expected futures real rates of return by the target asset
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best
estimates of geometric rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the
following table:

Asset Class Asset Allocation Long-Term Expected
Real Rate of Return

Domestic Equity 24% 6.29%
International Equity 16 6.75
Private Equity/Debt 11 11.32
Real Estate 8 3.48
Core Plus Fixed Income 28 2.04
Credit Opportunities 5 3.63
U.S. TIPS 5 1.91
Other Real Assets 2 6.24
Cash 1 (0.71)
Total 100%

37





38

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5
percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed
employee contributions will be made at the contractually required rate and contributions
from the City will be made at contractually required rates, actuarially determined. Based on
those assumptions, IPERS’ fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make alll
projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the
long-term expected rate of return on IPERS’ investments was applied to all periods of
projected benefits payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate — The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.5 percent, as well as what the City’s
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1 percentage-point lower (6.5 percent) or 1- percentage point higher
(8.5 percent) than the current rate.

1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(6.5%) (7.5%) (8.5%)
City’s proportionate share
of the net pension liability $2,804,507 $1,601,825 $ 586,675

IPERS’ Net Position — Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position
is available in the separately issued IPERS financial report which is available on IPERS’
website at www.ipers.org.

Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of lowa (MFPRSI)

Plan Description — MFPRSI membership is mandatory for fire fighters and police officers
covered by the provisions of Chapter 411 of the Code of lowa. Employees of City are
provided with pensions through a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension
plan administered by MFPRSI. MFPRSI issues a stand-alone financial report which is
available to the public by mail at 7155 Lake Drive, Suite #201, West Des Moines, lowa
50266 or at www.mfprsi.org.

MFPRSI benefits are established under Chapter 411 of the Code of lowa and the
administrative rules thereunder. Chapter 411 of the Code of lowa and the
administrative rules are the official plan documents. The following brief description is
providing for general informational purposes only. Refer to the plan documents for
more information.

Pension Benefits — Members with 4 or more years of service are entitled to pension
benefits beginning at age 55. Full service retirement benefits are granted to members
with 22 years of services, while partial benefits are available to those members with 4 to
22 years of service based on the ratio of years completed to years required (i.e., 22
years). Members with less than 4 years of service are entitled to a refund of their
contribution only, with interest, for the period of employment.






Benefits are calculated based upon the member’s highest 3 years of compensation. The
average of these 3 years becomes the member’s average final compensation. The base
benefit is 66 percent of the member's average final compensation. Members who
perform more than 22 years of service receive 2 percent of the member’'s average final
compensation for each additional year of service, up to a maximum of 8 years. Survivor
benefits are available to the beneficiary of a retired member according to the provisions
of the benefit option chosen plus an additional benefit for each child. Survivor benefits
are subject to a minimum benefit for those members who chose the basic benefit with a
50 percent surviving spouse benefit.

Active members, at least 55 years of age, with 22 or more years of service have the
option to participate in the Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP). The DROP is
an arrangement whereby a member who is otherwise eligible to retire and commence
benefits opts to continue to work. A member can elect a 3, 4, or 5 year DROP period.
When electing to participate in DROP, the member signs a contract stating the member
will retire at the end of the selected DROP period. During the DROP period, the
member’s retirement benefit is frozen and a DROP benefit is credited to a DROP
account established for the member. Assuming the member completes the DROP
period, the DROP benefit is equal to 52% of the member’s retirement benefit at the
member’s earliest date eligible and 100% if the member delays enrollment for 24
months. At the member’s actual date of retirement, the member's DROP account will be
distributed to the member in the form of a lump sum or rollover to an eligible plan.

Disability and Death Benefits — Disability benefits may be either accidental or ordinary.
Accidental disability is defined as permanent disability incurred in the line of duty, with
benefits equivalent to the greater of 60 percent of the member's average final
compensation or the member’s service retirement benefit calculation amount. Ordinary
disability occurs outside the call of duty and pays benefits equivalent to the greater of 50
percent of the member’s average final compensation for those with 5 or more years of
service or the member’s services retirement benefit calculation amount and 25 percent
of average final compensation for those with less than 5 years of service.

Death benefits are similar to disability benefits. Benefits for accidental death are 50
percent of the average final compensation of the member plus and additional amount for
each child, or the provisions for ordinary death. Ordinary death benefits consist of a
pension equal to 40 percent of the average final compensation of the member plus an
additional amount for each child, or a lump-sum distribution to the designated
beneficiary equal to 50 percent of the previous year’'s earnable compensation of the
member or equal to the amount of the member’s total contributions plus interest.

Benefits are increased annually in accordance with Chapter 411.6 of the Code of lowa
which provides a standard formula for the increases.

The surviving Spouse or dependents of an active member who dies due to a traumatic
personal injury incurred in the line of duty receives a $100,000 lump-sum payment.

Contributions — Members contribution rates are set by state statute. In accordance with
Chapter 411 of the Code of lowa, the contribution rate was 9.40% of earnable
compensation for the year ended June 30, 2016.

39





40

Employer contribution rates are based upon an actuarially determined normal
contribution rate and set by state statute. The required actuarially determined
contributions are calculated on the basis of the entry age normal method as adopted by
the Board of Trustees as permitted under Chapter 411 of the Code of lowa. The normal
contribution rate is provided by state statute to be the actuarial liabilities of the plan less
current plan assets, with such total divided by 1 percent of the actuarially determined
present value of prospective future compensation of all members, further reduced by
member contributions and state appropriations. Under the code of lowa, the employer’s
contribution rate cannot be less than 17.00% of earnable compensation. The
contribution rate was 27.77% for the year ended June 30, 2016.

The City’s contributions to MFPRSI for the year ended June 30, 2016 was $225,310.

If approved by the state legislature, state appropriation may further reduce the City’s
contribution rate, but not below the minimum statutory contrition rate of 17.00% of
earnable compensation. The State of lowa, therefore, is considered to be a
nonemployer contributing entity in accordance with the provisions of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 67 — Financial Reporting for Pension Plans,
(GASB 67).

There were no state appropriations to MFPRSI during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2016.

Net Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows or Resources Related to Pensions — At June 30, 2016, the City
reported a liability of $ 1,043,900 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability.
The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of that date. The City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on
the City’s share of contributions to the MFPRSI relative to the contributions of all MFPSI
participating employers. At June 30, 2015, the City’s proportion was .287974% which
was a increase of .8609786% from its proportions measured as of June 30, 2014.

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the City’s pension expense, deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources totaled $125,597, $ 77,155, and $ 493,663,
respectfully.

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liability in the June 30, 2015, actuarial
valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all
periods included in the measurement:

Rate of inflation 3.00 percent
Rate of Salary increase 4.50 to 15.00 percent, including inflation
Investment rate of return 7.50 percent, net of investment expense,

including inflation

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2015, valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2002 to June 30,
2012.





Mortality Rates were based on weighting equal to 1/12 of the 1971 GAM table and 11/12
of the 1994 GAM table with no projection of future mortality improvement.

The long-term expected rate of return on MFPRSI investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates (i.e.,
expected returns, net of investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major
asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates
of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the
following table:

Long—Term Expected

Asset Class Asset Allocation Real Rate of Return
Core Plus Fixed Income 7.0% 3.8%
Emerging Markets Debt 3.0 6.5
Domestic Equities 125 6.0
Master Limited Partnerships (MLP) 5.0 8.5
International Equities 125 7.0
Core Investments 40.0%

Tactical Asset Allocation 35.0 6.0
Private Equity 15.0 9.8
Private Non-Core Real Estate 5.0 9.3
Private Core Real Estate 5.0 6.8
Real Estate 10.0

Total 100%

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5
percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed
contributions will be made at 9.40% of covered payroll and the City contributions will be
made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined rates and the
member rate. Based on those assumptions, the MFPRSI’s fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on MFPRSI’s investments
was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.

Sensitivity of City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate — The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.50 percent, as well as what the city’s
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1-percent lower (6.50 percent) or 1-percent higher (8.50 percent)
than the current rate.

41





1% Discount 1%

Decrease Rate Increase
(6.5%) (7.5%) (8.5%)
City’s proportionate share
of the net pension liability $2,355,512 $1,352,942 $519,923

MFPRSI's Fiduciary Net Position — Detailed information about MFPRSI’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued MFPRSI financial report which is available on
MFPRSI’s website at www.mfprsi.org.

Note 5 - Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

Plan Description - The City partially self-funds a single-employer health benefit plan which
provides medical/prescription drug benefits for employees, retirees and their spouses. There
are 52 active and three (3) retired members in the plan. Participants must be age 55 or older at
retirement.

The medical/prescription drug coverage is provided through a fully-insured plan with Wellmark.
The City self-funds the co-payments, deductibles and out-of-pocket maximums to a lower
amount. Retirees under age 65 pay the same premium for the medical/prescription drug benefit
as active employees, which results in an implicit subsidy and an OPEB liability.

Funding Policy - The contribution requirements of plan members are established by union
contracts for union employees and by Council for non-union employees. The City currently
finances the benefit plan on a pay-as-you-go basis. Currently, public works union employees
are required to pay, on a pre-tax basis, 10% of the cost of the premium equal to the cost of
electing continuing coverage under COBRA, and police union and non-union employees pay
20%. For FY 2016, the public works employees contributed $551.28 for single coverage and
$1,236.96 for family coverage. For FY 2016, police union employees and non-union employees
contributed $1,102.56 for single coverage and $2,473.92 for family coverage. For the year
ended June 30, 2016, the City contributed $537,192.85 and plan members eligible for benefits
contributed $113,878.34 to the plan.

If an employee certifies that he/she is otherwise covered by health insurance and opts to waive
coverage through the City, the City shall pay the employee an amount equal to thirty-percent
(30%) of the single health insurance coverage.

Note 6 - Compensated Absences

42

City employees accumulate a limited amount of earned but unused vacation and compensatory
time for subsequent use or for payment upon termination, retirement or death. These
accumulations are not recognized as disbursements by the City until used or paid. Sick leave
for employees other than in the Police Department is payable when used for a maximum of 180
days. Unused sick leave is not paid upon termination, retirement or death. However, in
accordance with the Union agreement, upon retirement from the Police Department, the City
pays a police union employee for one-fourth of all accrued sick leave over 720 hours at their
current pay rate. The City's approximate liability for earned vacation, compensatory time and
sick leave termination benefits payable to employees at June 30, 2016, primarily relating to the
General Fund, is as follows:





Type of Benefits
Vacation
Compensatory Time
Sick Leave

Liability
June 30, 2016
$ 154,119.09

22,123.92

3,480.04

$179,723.05

* Computed based on rates of pay as of June 30, 2016.

Note 7 - Hospital Revenue Bonds

On November 1, 2006, the City issued a total of $5,425,000 of Hospital Revenue Bonds under
the provisions of Chapter 419 of the Code of lowa. The bonds and related interest are
payable solely from the revenue of St. Anthony Regional Hospital, and the bond principal and
interest do not constitute liabilities of the City.

On November 26, 2012, the City issued a total of $4,820,000 of Hospital Revenue Refunding
Bonds under the provisions of Chapter 419 of the Code of lowa. The bonds and related
interest are payable solely from the revenue of St. Anthony Regional Hospital, and the bond
principal and interest do not constitute liabilities of the City.

Note 8 - Land Fill Contract

The City of Carroll has an agreement with the Carroll County Solid Waste Commission for
solid waste disposal, for all households and businesses within the City. For the year ended
June 30, 2016, $122,980 was paid pursuant to the agreement.

The City entered the agreement on February 25, 1971. There is no specified termination
date. The City and other municipalities in the county have representation on the

commission, which sets the rates paid based upon its annual budget.

The charge is

assessed to each municipality and the rural areas based upon population and adjusted
arbitrarily based upon the distance the municipality is from the landfill to equalize hauling
costs. The City of Carroll's share of the fees at June 30, 2016, was 47% of the total.

Note 9 - Interfund Transfers

The detail of interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2016, is as follows:

Transfer to Transfer from

General Special Revenue
Enterprise

Special

Revenue Road Use Tax

LOST

Amount
Employee Benefits $796,240.81
Ace Builders 1,232.38
Water 38,032.00
Sewer 37,945.00
Employee Benefit Special
Revenue 136,979.90
CP- Agquatic Center 9,716.95

43





Debt Service  Special Revenue  Ashwood 34,317.53

Local Option Sales Tax 399,730.00
Enterprise Sewer 675,300.00
Capital
Projects General Fund CP — Airport 31,838.74
CP- Parks & Rec 145,151.63
Special Revenue  Hotel to CP-Parks & Rec 80,000.00
LOST to Streets 500,000.00
Road Use tax to Streets 425,000.00
Water CP Corridor 1,065,000.00
Storm Water CP - Streets 100,000.00
Enterprise Enterprise UR Downtown to Water 873,920.00
Water to Water Depr. 50,000.00
Water to Water Cap. Imp. 226,356.50
Water Depr-Water Cap Imp 300,515.00
Sewer to Sewer Depr 35,000.00
Storm Water-Storm Cap Imp 155,000.00
$6,117,276.44

Transfers generally move resources from the fund statutorily required to collect the resources
to the fund statutorily required to disburse the resources.

Note 10 - Risk Management

44

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft, damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. These risks are
covered by the purchase of commercial insurance. The City assumes liability for any
deductibles and claims in excess of coverage limitations. Settled claims from these risks have
not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

lowa Municipalities Worker's Compensation Association

In July 1987, the City joined together with other cities and counties in the State to participate
in the lowa Municipalities Workers' Compensation Association (IMWCA), a public entity risk
pool currently operating as a workers' compensation risk management and insurance
program for 521 member cities, counties and Chapter 28E entities. Under the Workers'
Compensation Coverage Agreement of the IMWCA, each participant of the IMWCA
authorized the IMWCA to issue and sell bonds on behalf of the participants for the purpose of
providing funds to pay claims and the costs of issuing such bonds. The City pays an annual
premium to IMWCA to pay the City's pro rata share of the principal and interest on the bonds
and administrative expenses of the IMWCA. The Workers' Compensation Coverage
agreement provides that IMWCA will be self-sustaining through member premiums and will
annually evaluate the need to reinsure through commercial companies to protect the fund
from catastrophic claims. The City's pro rata share of the IMWCA's bonds outstanding for
fiscal year ending June 30, 2016, is zero as the debt has been paid in its entirety. The City's
annual contributions to IMWCA for the year ended June 30, 2016, were $59,065.00.

lowa Communities Assurance Pool

The City of Carroll is a member in the lowa Communities Assurance Pool, as allowed by
Chapter 670.7 of the Code of lowa. The lowa Communities Assurance Pool (Pool) is a local





government risk-sharing pool whose 746 members include various governmental entities
throughout the State of lowa. The Pool was formed in August 1986 for the purpose of
managing and funding third-party liability claims against its members. The Pool provides
coverage and protection in the following categories: general liability, automobile liability,
automobile physical damage, public official’s liability, police professional liability, property,
inland marine, and boiler/machinery. There have been no reductions in insurance coverage
from prior years.

Each member’'s annual casualty contributions to the Pool fund current operations and provide
capital. Annual casualty operating contributions are those amounts necessary to fund, on a
cash basis, the Pool's general and administrative expenses, claims, claims expenses and
reinsurance expenses estimated for the fiscal year, plus all or any portion of any deficiency in
capital. Capital contributions are made during the first six years of membership and are
maintained at a level determined by the Board not to exceed 300 percent of basis rates.

The Pool also provides property coverage. Members who elect such coverage make annual
property operating contributions which are necessary to fund, on a cash basis, the Pool's
general and administrative expenses and reinsurance premiums, losses and loss expenses
for property risks estimated for the fiscal year, plus all or any portion of any deficiency in
capital. Any year-end operating surplus is transferred to capital. Deficiencies in operations
are offset by transfers from capital and, if insufficient, by the subsequent year's member
contributions.

The City's property and casualty contributions to the risk pool are recorded as disbursements
from its operating funds at the time of payment to the risk pool. The City's annual
contributions to the Pool for the year ended June 30, 2016, were $206,619.18.

The Pool uses reinsurance and excess risk-sharing agreements to reduce its exposure to
large losses. The Pool retains general, automobile, police professional, and public officials'
liability risks up to $350,000 per claim. Claims exceeding $350,000 are reinsured through
reinsurance and excess risk-sharing agreements up to the amount of risk-sharing
protection provided by the City’s risk-sharing certificate. Property and automobile physical
damage risks are retained by the Pool up to $250,000 each occurrence, each location.
Property risks exceeding $250,000 are reinsured through reinsurance and excess risk-
sharing agreements up to the amount of risk-sharing protection provided by the City’s risk-
sharing certificate.

The Pool's intergovernmental contract with its members provides that in the event a casualty
claim, property loss or series of claims or losses exceeds the amount of risk-sharing
protection provided by the member's risk-sharing certificate, or in the event a casualty claim,
property loss or series of claims or losses exhausts the Pool's funds and any excess risk-
sharing recoveries, then payment of such claims or losses shall be the obligation of the
respective individual member against whom the claim was made or loss was incurred.

Members agree to continue membership in the Pool for a period of not less than one full year.
After such period, a member who has given 60 days' prior written notice may withdraw from
the Pool. Upon withdrawal, payments for all casualty claims and claims expenses become
the sole responsibility of the withdrawing member, regardless of whether a claim was incurred
or reported prior to the member's withdrawal. Upon withdrawal, a formula set forth in the
Pool’s intergovernmental contract with its members is applied to determine the amount (if any)

45





to be refunded to the withdrawing member.

The City also carries commercial insurance purchased from other insurers for coverage
associated with airport liability and blanket bond in the amount of $3,749 and $446
respectively. The City assumes liability for any deductibles, and claims in excess of coverage
limitations. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Note 11 — Related Party Transactions

The City had business transactions between the City and City Officials totaling $3,976.34
during the year ended June 30, 2016.

Note 12 — Litigation

The Airport Commission has brought a petition for abate of nuisance against a county resident
who constructed a grain leg that violates county zoning regulations regarding air space
contiguous to the regional airport. The Case is in the discovery process with a trial date in
2017.

Note 13 — Subsequent Events

In July 2016, the City entered into a contract for $661,257.50 for leachate forcemain and
gravity sewer installation project along Industrial Park Road.

In September 2016, the City entered into a contract in the amount of $514,900.00 for the
construction of a cemetery maintenance building.

In November 2016, the City plans to issue $2,290,000 in general obligation loan notes to
finance a cemetery maintenance building and storm sewer improvements along Third Street.

Note 14 — New Accounting Pronouncement

City of Carroll adopted fair value guidance as forth in Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. The Statement sets forth
guidance for determining and disclosing the fair value of assets and liabilities reported in the
financial statements. Adoption of the guidance did not have a significant impact on amounts
reported or disclosed in the financial statements.

46





City of Carroll

Other Information

47





City of Carroll
Budgetary Comparison Schedule of Receipts, Disbursements and Changes in Balances -
Actual and Budget (Cash Basis) - All Governmental Funds and Proprietary Funds

Year ended June 30, 2016

Receipts:

Property tax
Other taxes
Use of money and property
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for service
Fines and fees
Miscellaneous

Total receipts

Disbursements:

Public Safety
Public Works
Health and Social Services
Culture and Recreation
Community & Economic Development
General Government
Debt Service
Capital Projects

Total Government Activities
Business Type Activities

Total disbursements

Excess (deficiency) of receipts over disbursements

Other financing sources (uses), net

Excess (deficiency) of receipts and other financing
sources over (under) disbursements and other
financing uses

Balance beginning of year
Balance end of year

48

Less Funds
Governmental Proprietary not Required
Fund Type Fund to be Budgeted
Actual Actual and Adjustments
6,356,527.42 - $ -
1,728,626.59 - -
81,388.36 71,847.89 -
82,998.16 - -
1,945,518.85 - -
1,720,850.72 3,706,318.61 -
69,564.35 - -
227,960.13 84,372.37 -
12,213,434.58 3,862,538.87 -
1,938,331.21 - -
2,065,191.97 - -
100,325.00 - -
2,521,114.49 - -
145,531.69 - -
974,943.53 - -
3,526,090.38 - 675,300.00
2,551,695.07 - -
13,823,223.34 675,300.00
3,856,248.69 -
13,823,223.34 3,856,248.69 675,300.00
(1,609,788.76) 6,290.18 (675,300.00)
1,952,357.00 (1,042,357.00) -
342,568.24 (1,036,066.82) (675,300.00)
10,078,800.17 8,263,420.94 -
$ 10,421,368.41 $ 7,227,354.12  $ (675,300.00)






Final to

Actual
Variance Net as
Budgeted Amounts Favorable % of
Net Original Final (Unfavorable) Budget
$ 6,356,527.42 6,262,391.00 $ 6,262,391.00 94,136.42 102%
1,728,626.59 1,854,367.00 1,854,367.00 (125,740.41) 93%
153,236.25 108,395.00 112,995.00 40,241.25 136%
82,998.16 66,375.00 66,375.00 16,623.16 125%
1,945,518.85 2,393,259.00 2,553,159.00 (607,640.15) 76%
5,427,169.33 5,295,924.00 5,295,924.00 131,245.33 102%
69,564.35 - - 69,564.35 -
312,332.50 258,025.00 285,480.00 26,852.50 109%
16,075,973.45 16,238,736.00 16,430,691.00 (354,717.55) 98%
1,938,331.21 2,086,101.00 2,131,026.00 192,694.79 91%
2,065,191.97 2,207,884.00 2,240,199.00 175,007.03 92%
100,325.00 109,945.00 109,945.00 9,620.00 91%
2,521,114.49 3,043,445.00 3,202,700.00 681,585.51 79%
145,531.69 129,298.00 162,598.00 17,066.31 90%
974,943.53 1,040,179.00 1,074,629.00 99,685.47 91%
2,850,790.38 1,103,675.00 2,850,825.00 34.62 100%
2,5651,695.07 4,125,000.00 4,537,100.00 1,985,404.93 56%
13,147,923.34 13,845,527.00 16,309,022.00 3,161,098.66 81%
3,856,248.69 6,001,997.00 6,021,997.00 2,165,748.31 64%
17,004,172.03 19,847,524.00 22,331,019.00 5,326,846.97 76%
(928,198.58) (3,608,788.00) (5,900,328.00) 4,972,129.42
910,000.00 910,000.00 910,000.00 -
(18,198.58) (2,698,788.00) (4,990,328.00) 4,972,129.42

18,342,221.11

14,339,165.00

18,342,221.00

$ 18,324,022.53

11,640,377.00

$ 13,351,893.00

See notes to financial statements.





50

City of Carroll

Notes to Required Supplementary Information — Budgetary Reporting

June 30, 2016

The budgetary comparison is presented in accordance with Government Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 41 for governments with significant budgetary
perspective differences resulting from not being able to present budgetary comparisons
for the General Fund and each major Special Revenue Fund.

In accordance with the Code of lowa, the City Council annually adopts a budget on the
cash basis following required public notice and hearing for all funds, except the Internal
Service Fund. The annual budget may be amended during the year utilizing similar
statutorily prescribed procedures.

Formal and legal budgetary control is based upon nine major classes of disbursements
known as functions, not by fund. These nine functions are: public safety, public works,
health and social services, culture and recreation, community and economic
development, general government, debt service, capital projects, and business type
activities. Function disbursements required to be budgeted include disbursements for
the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Fund, Capital Projects Funds,
the Permanent Fund and Enterprise Funds. Although the budget document presents
function disbursements by fund, the legal level of control is at the aggregated function
level, not by fund. During the year, two budget amendments increased budgeted
disbursements by $4,148,489 and budgeted revenues by $1,856,949. The budget
amendments are reflected in the final budgeted amounts.

During the year ended June 30, 2016, disbursements did not exceed the amounts
budgeted in the general government and business-type activities functions.





City of Carroll
Schedule of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
lowa Public Employees’ Retirement System
For the Last Two Years*

(In Thousands)

Other Information

2016 2015

City's proportionate of the net pension

liability 0.0324224% 0.0350475%
City's proportionate share of the net

pension liability $ 1,602 $ 1,390
City's covered-employee payroll $ 2,221 $ 2,218
City's proportionate share of the net

pension liability as a percentage

of its covered-employee payroll 72.13% 62.67%
IPERS’ net position as a

percentage of the total pension

liability 85.19% 87.61%

* In accordance with GASB Statement No. 68, the amounts presented for each fiscal year
determined as of June 30 of the preceding fiscal year. GASB 68 requires ten years of
information to be presented in this table. However, until a full 10 year trend is compiled, the
City will present information for those years for which information is available.

See notes to financial statements 51





Scheduled of City Contributions

City of Carroll

lowa Public Employees’ Retirement System
Last 10 Fiscal Years

Statutorily required contribution

Contributions in relation to the
statutorily required contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

City's covered-employee payroll

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll

52

Other Information

2016 2015 2014 2013
$198,356  $ 198,054 $ 204,797 $ 210,487
(198,356) (198,054) (204,797) (210,487)
$ - $ - $ - $ -
$2,221,231  $2,217,864  $2,293,361  $2,428,474
8.93% 8.93% 8.93% 8.67%





2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
$ 200,546 $ 174,960 $ 158,872 $ 144,939 $ 130,710 $ 119,546
(200,546) (174,960) (158,872) (144,939) (130,710) (119,546)
$ - $ - - $ - $ - $ - $ -
$2,484,915 $2,517,417  $2,389,040  $2,282,501  $2,160,501  $2,078,075
8.07% 6.95% 6.65% 6.35% 6.05% 5.75%

See notes to financial statements

53





City of Carroll
Notes to Other Information — Pension Liability
lowa Public Employees’ Retirement System

Year ended June 30, 2016

Changes of benefit terms:

Legislation passed in 2010 modified benefit terms for current Regular members. The
definition of final average salary changed from the highest three to the highest five years of
covered wages. The vesting requirement changed from four years of service to seven
years. The early retirement reduction increased from 3 percent per year measured from
the member’s first unreduced retirement age to a 6 percent reduction for each year of
retirement before age 65.

In 2008, legislative action transferred four groups — emergency medical service providers,
county jailers, county attorney investigators, and National Guard installation security
officers — from Regular membership to the protection occupation group for future service
only.

Changes of assumptions:

54

The 2014 valuation implemented the following refinements as a result of a quadrennial
experience study:

e Decreased the inflation assumption from 3.25 percent to 3.00 percent

eDecreased the assumed rate of interest on member accounts from 4.00
percent to 3.75 percent per year.

¢ Adjusted male mortality rates for retirees in the Regular membership group.

e Reduced retirement rates for sheriffs and deputies between the ages of 55 and
64.

eMoved from an open 30 year amortization period to a closed 30 year
amortization period for the UAL beginning June 30, 2014. Each year
thereafter, changes in the UAL from plan experience will be amortized on a
separate closed 20 year period.

The 2010 valuation implemented the following refinements as a result of a
guadrennial experience study:

¢ Adjusted retiree mortality assumptions.

e Modified retirement rates to reflect fewer retirements.
e Lowered disability rates at most ages.

e Lowered employment termination rates





e Generally increased the probability of terminating members receiving a
deferred retirement benefit.

¢ Modified salary increase assumptions based on various service duration.

The 2007 valuation adjusted the application of the entry age normal cost method to
better match projected contributions to the projected salary stream in the future
years. It also included the one-year lag between the valuation date and the effective
date of the annual actuarial contribution rate in the calculation of the UAL
amortization payments.

See notes to financial statements

55





56

Other Information

Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of lowa





City of Carroll

Schedule of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of lowa
For the Last Two Year*
(In Thousands)

Other Information

2016 2015

City's proportionate of the net pension

liability 0.287974% 0.278188%
City's proportionate share of the net

pension liability $ 1,043 $ 1,008
City's covered-employee payroll $ 811 $ 755
City's proportionate share of the net

pension liability as a percentage

of its covered-employee payroll 128.61% 133.51%
MFPRSI net position as a

percentage of the total pension

liability 83.04% 86.27%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of June 30.

Note: GASB Statement No. 68 requires ten years of information to be presented in this
table. However, until a full 10 year trend is compiled, the City will present information for
those years for which information is available.

See notes to financial statements 57





Scheduled of City Contributions

City of Carroll

Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of lowa
Last 10 Fiscal Years

Statutorily required contribution

Contributions in relation to the
statutorily required contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

City's covered-employee payroll

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

58

Other Information

2016 2015 2014 2013
$225,310 $229,656  $213,975  $182,280
(225,310) (229,656)  (213,975)  (182,280)
$ - $ - $ - $ -
$811,343 $755,200  $710,408  $697,855
27.77% 30.41% 30.12% 26.12%





2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
$170,374  $151,853  $122,321  $126,086  $167,367  $179,547
(170,374)  (151,853)  (122,321)  (126,086)  (167,367)  (179,547)
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
$688,104  $763,081  $719,531  $672,457  $656,855  $647,017
24.76% 19.90% 17.00% 18.75% 25.48% 27.75%

See notes to financial statements

59





City of Carroll

Notes to Other Information — Pension Liability
Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of lowa

Year ended June 30, 2016

Changes of benefit terms:

There were no significant changes of benefit terms.

Changes of assumptions:

Effective July 1, 2014, two additional steps to phase in the 1994 Group Annuity Mortality
Table for post-retirement mortality. The two additional steps result in a weighting of 2/12 of
the 1971 Group Annuity Mortality Table and 10/12 of the 1994 Group Annuity Mortality

Table.

60





City of Carroll

Supplementary Information

61





City of Carroll
Schedule of Cash Receipts, Disbursements
and Changes in Cash Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2016
Special Revenue

IHA Recrea

Ace Senior -tion
Employee Urban Ashwood Builders Housing Center
Benefits Renewal UR UR TIF Trust

Receipts:
Property tax $ 824,722.94 $ 862,492.79 $31,17751 $ 291583 $ 24046 $ -

Other taxes - - - - -

Use of money
and property:
Interest on deposits - 943.14 59.56 1.62 7.97 168.86

Intergovernmental:
State funding 41,190.35 6,959.16 3,080.46 - - -

Charges for Services - - - - - R

Miscellaneous - - - - - 5,999.34

Total receipts 865,913.29 870,395.09 34,317.53 2,917.45 248.43 6,168.20

Disbursements:
Public Safety - - - - - -
Public Works - - - - - -
Culture & Recreation - - - - - 15,746.47

Community and Economic
Development: - - - 1,685.07 248.43 -
Capital - - - - - -

Total disbursements - - - 1,685.07 248.43 15,746.47

Excess (deficiency ) of
receipts over (under)
disbursements 865,913.29 870,395.09 34,317.53 1,232.38 - (9,578.27)

Other financing sources
(uses):

Operating transfers
in - - - - - -

Operating transfers
(out) (933,220.71) (873,920.00) (34,317.53) (1,232.38) -

(933,220.71) (873,920.00) (34,317.53)  (1,232.38) - -

Excess (deficiency) of

receipts and other

financing sources (uses)

over (under) disbursements (67,307.42) (3,524.91) - - - (9,578.27)

Cash balance beginning
of year 67,307.42 64,169.53 - - - 43,546.34

Cash balance end of year g (0.00) $ 60,644.62 $ - 8 - % - $33,968.07

62





Schedule 1

Permanent
Cemetery Rec
Police Crime Library Perpetual Center

Forfeiture  Prevention Trust Care Trust Total
$ - - - $ - $ - $ 1,721,549.53
48.37 181.81 283.62 1,756.90 130.13 3,581.98
- 900.00 3,244.66 - - 55,374.63
- 6,050.00 - - - 6,050.00
649.65 2,525.00 5,368.16 18,450.00 - 32,992.15
698.02 9,656.81 8,896.44 20,206.90 130.13 1,819,548.29
886.58 8,502.07 - - - 9,388.65
- - 9,061.68 - - 24,808.15
- - - - - 1,933.50
886.58 8,502.07 9,061.68 - - 36,130.30
(188.56) 1,154.74 (165.24) 20,206.90 130.13 1,783,417.99
B - (1,842,690.62)
- - - - (1,842,690.62)
(188.56) 1,154.74 (165.24) 20,206.90 130.13 (59,272.63)
12,370.96 44,177.45 66,006.71 422,981.80 31,995.85 752,556.06
$ 12,182.40 $45,332.19 $ 65,841.47 $ 443,188.70 $ 32,12598 $ 693,283.43

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

63





City of Carroll

Statement of Cash Receipts, Disbursements

and Changes in Cash Balances
Non-Major Proprietary Funds
Year ended June 30, 2016

Receipts:
Charges for service
Use of money and property
FEMA Grant Reimb
Miscellaneous
Total Receipts

Disbursements:
Business-type activities:
Operations
Capital Outlay
Total Disbursements
Excess (deficiency) of receipts
over (under) disbursements

Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers (out)
Total other financing sources (uses)
Excess of receipts and other financing sources
over disbursements and other financing uses
Cash balance beginning of year

Cash balance end of year
Cash Basis Fund Balances

Committed

Unrestricted
Total cash basis fund balances

64

Water
Depreciation

Water
Meter Deposit

$ - $ -
3,725.84 -

- $ 12,650.00

3,725.84 12,650.00

. 10,850.00

- 10,850.00

3,725.84 1,800.00
50,000.00 -
(300,515.00) -
(250,515.00) -

(246,789.16) 1,800.00

912,868.03 41,920.90

$ 666,078.87 $ 43,720.90
$ - $ -

666,078.87 43,720.90

$ 666,078.87 $ 43,720.90






Non-Major Enterprise Funds

Schedule 2

Sewer Sewer Storm Water
Depreciation Capital Improv. Capital Improv. Total
$ - $ - $ - $ -
1,935.23 2,475.27 1,378.01 9,514.35
- - - 12,650.00
1,935.23 2,475.27 1,378.01 22,164.35
- - - 10,850.00
- - 140,945.50 140,945.50
- - 140,945.50 151,795.50
1,935.23 2,475.27 (139,567.49) (129,631.15)
35,000.00 - 155,000.00 240,000.00
- - - (300,515.00)
35,000.00 - 155,000.00 (60,515.00)
36,935.23 2,475.27 15,432.51 (190,146.15)
475,784.92 608,556.50 386,753.49 2,425,883.84
$ 512,720.15 $ 611,031.77 $ 402,186.00 $ 2,235,737.69
$ - $  402,186.00 $ - $ 402,186.00
512,720.15 208,845.77 402,186.00 1,833,551.69
$ 512,720.15 $ 611,031.77 $ 402,186.00 $ 2,235,737.69

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.






City of Carroll
Schedule of Indebtedness
Year ended June 30, 2016

Amount
Date of Interest Originally
Obligation Issue Rates Issued
General Obligation Bonds:
G. O. Bonds 2008A
Aguatic/UR Area Public Improvements 6/18/2008 2.35-420% $  3,660,000.00
G. O. Bonds 2014 8/12/2014 A-T% 1,120,000.00
Revenue Bonds
Sewer Revenue Bonds 6/9/2004 1.75% 11,000,000.00
General Obligation/Capital Loan Notes:
Capital Loan Note Series 2013
GO Cap Loan 6/27/2013 .4-.55% 1,235,000.00
Capital Loan Note Series 2015A
GO Refunding Loan 4/23/2015 .75-1.85% 1,770,000.00
Capital Loan Note Series 2016A
GO Cap Loan 3/23/2016 .45-.85% 910,000.00
Grand Total $ 19,695,000.00

66





Schedule 3

Balance Issued Redeemed Balance Interest
Beginning During During End Interest Due and
of Year Year Year of Year Paid Unpaid
$ 100,000.00 $ - $ 100,000.00 $ - $ 7095250 $ -
615,000.00 305,000.00 310,000.00 3,847.50 -
6,315,000.00 549,000.00 5,766,000.00 110,512.50 -
235,000.00 - 235,000.00 - 1,292.50 -
1,770,000.00 - 1,770,000.00 27,627.83 -
- 910,000.00 385,000.00 525,000.00 1,070.06 -
$ 9,035,000.00 $ 910,000.00 $ 1,574,000.00 $ 8,371,000.00 $ 21530289 $ -

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

67





Schedule 4

City of Carroll

Bond and Note Maturities

June 30, 2016

General Obligation Bonds

Revenue Bonds

2014 Refunding GO Bonds

Ashwood TIF
Street Rehab

Issued August 12, 2014

Series 2003
WWTP Improvements
Revenue Bond
Issued June 9, 2004

Year
Ending Interest Interest Revenue
June 30, Rate Amount Rate Amount Bonds
2017 0.700% $ 310,000 1.75% $ 566,000 $ 876,000
2018 - 1.75% 584,000 584,000
2019 - 1.75% 601,000 601,000
2020 - 1.75% 619,000 619,000
2021 - 1.75% 639,000 639,000
2022 - 1.75% 659,000 659,000
2023 - 1.75% 678,000 678,000
2024 - 1.75% 699,000 699,000
2025 1.75% 721,000 721,000
_$ 310,000 $ 5,766,000 $ 6,076,000
General Obligation Notes
Series 2016A
Weight Room, Street Series 21015A
Rehab 2015 & Sweeper Aquatic Refunding
March 23, 2016 April 23, 2015 Total
Year General
Ended Interest Interest Obligation
June 30, Rate Amount Rate Amount Notes
2017 0.65% $ 265,000 0.75% $ 155,000 $ 420,000
2018 0.85% 260,000 1.00% 260,000 520,000
2019 - - 1.25% 260,000 260,000
2020 - - 1.35% 265,000 265,000
2021 - - 1.60% 270,000 270,000
2022 - - 1.75% 280,000 280,000
2023 - - 1.85% 280,000 280,000
$ 525,000 $ 1,770,000 $ 2,295,000

68. See accompanying independent auditor’s report.






City of Carroll

69





City of Carroll
Schedule of Cash Receipts, Disbursements

and Change in Cash Balances

Capital Projects Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Receipts:
Use of money and property:
Interest on investments
Intergovernmental:
FAA Grant

Miscellaneous:
Donations
Refunds, settlements & donations

Total receipts
Disbursements:

Capital outlay

Total disbursements
Deficiency of receipts under disbursements
Other financing sources (uses):

General Obligation debt proceeds
Transfers In (Out):
To General Fund & others
From General Fund & others

Excess (deficiency) of receipts and other
financing sources (uses) over disbursements

Balance beginning of year

Balance end of year

70 see accompanying independent auditor’s report.

Street Equipment Corridor of

Rehabilitation Purchase Commerce
$ 147.27 $ 122  $ 3,819.77
147.27 1.22 3,819.77
1,368,685.99 182,001.22 133,827.31
1,368,685.99 182,001.22 133,827.31
1,368,685.99 182,001.22 133,827.31

(1,368,538.72)

(182,000.00)

(130,007.54)

337,249.00 182,000.00 -
1,025,000.00 - 1,065,000.00
1,362,249.00 182,000.00 1,065,000.00

(6,289.72) - 934,992.46
458,223.23 - 1,028,291.54
$ 451,93351 $ - $ 1,963,284.00






Schedule 5

Outdoor
Parks & Aquatic

Airport Recreation Center Total
- $ 1,039.47 - $ 5,007.73
299,399.00 - - 299,399.00
299,399.00 - - 299,399.00
- 10,000.00 10,000.00 20,000.00
- 10,000.00 10,000.00 20,000.00
299,399.00 11,039.47 10,000.00 324,406.73
294,279.97 572,900.58 283.05 2,5651,978.12
294,279.97 572,900.58 283.05 2,5651,978.12
294,279.97 572,900.58 283.05 2,5651,978.12
5,119.03 (561,861.11) 9,716.95 (2,227,571.39)
- 390,751.00 - 910,000.00
- - (9,716.95) (9,716.95)
31,838.74 225,151.63 - 2,346,990.37
31,838.74 615,902.63 (9,716.95) 3,247,273.42
36,957.77 54,041.52 - 1,019,702.03
(36,957.77) 342,328.75 - 1,791,885.75
- $ 396,370.27 - $ 2,811,587.78

71





Receipts:
Property tax
Other Taxes
Use of money and property
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Special assessments
Fines and fees
Miscellaneous
Total receipts
Disbursements:
Public Safety Program
Public Works Program
Health and Social Services Program
Culture and Recreation Program
Community and Economic
Development Program
General Government
Debt Service
Capital Projects

Total disbursements
Excess (deficiency ) of receipts over
(under)
disbursements

Other financing sources, net
Excess (deficiency) of receipts and other
financing

sources (uses) over (under)
disbursements
Balance beginning of year
Balance end of year

City of Carroll

Schedule of Receipts by Source and
Disbursements by Function
All Governmental Fund Types
For the Last Ten Years

For the Years ended June 30,

2016 2015 2014 2013
$ 6,356,527.42 $ 6,592,626.16 6,067,014.23 $ 6,056,661.80
1,728,626.59 1,799,782.76 1,601,246.98 1,657,031.49
81,388.36 67,284.88 52,740.68 54,773.45
82,998.16 83,630.71 75,342.69 65,097.37
1,945,518.85 1,512,758.17 1,199,469.11 1,902,694.79
1,720,850.72 1,687,492.25 1,776,696.48 1,670,721.37
69,564.35 70,730.45 75,342.29 66,969.17
227,960.13 179,109.35 209,639.55 354,328.62

12,213,434.58

11,993,414.73

11,057,492.01

11,828,278.06

1,938,331.21
2,065,191.97

100,325.00
2,521,114.49

145,531.69
974,943.53
3,526,090.38
2,551,695.07

1,906,630.63
2,067,094.76

102,525.00
2,603,412.07

157,123.42
935,009.41
2,196,365.03
2,326,714.41

1,776,907.84
2,185,955.93

107,575.00
2,516,906.96

239,825.48
922,779.99
2,352,246.01
973,421.15

1,813,369.47
2,167,353.30

103,900.00
2,238,842.89

383,043.37
851,595.01
3,035,244.62
3,191,507.88

13,823,223.34

12,294,874.73

11,075,618.36

13,784,856.54

(1,609,788.76) (301,460.00) (18,126.35) (1,956,578.48)
1,952,357.00 4,008,242.75 1,040,982.25 2,140,803.28
342,568.24 3,706,782.75 1,022,855.90 184,224.80
10,078,800.17 6,372,017.42 5,349,161.52 5,164,936.72
$ 10,421,368.41  $ 10,078,800.17 6,372,017.42  $ 5,349,161.52

72 See accompanying independent auditor’s report.





Schedule 6

2012

2011

2010

2009

2008

2007

$ 5,760,635.65

$ 5,555,482.90

$ 5,293,004.55

$ 4,789,641.54

$ 4,822,212.50

$ 4,706,146.74

1,504,595.60 1,575,604.70 1,460,964.73 1,500,539.63 1,238,329.91 1,194,425.43
57,126.89 61,269.11 78,553.97 187,414.01 270,447.23 346,350.54
63,764.45 81,580.33 66,677.87 80,867.06 89,455.95 122,183.45
2,113,613.13 3,443,056.73 1,402,405.54 1,418,284.53 1,438,565.99 2,673,863.30
1,706,685.62 1,653,576.74 1,640,511.31 1,555,741.65 1,471,970.72 1,426,763.38
- - 1,278.00 5,129.00 5,132.00 5,132.00

54,534.19 51,736.28 40,988.72 37,124.00 46,081.65 47,135.21
266,697.99 276,884.47 219,133.42 477,564.98 759,857.53 293,099.09
11,527,653.52 12,699,191.26 10,203,518.11 10,052,306.40 10,142,053.48 10,815,099.14
1,820,199.02 1,782,233.01 1,713,451.86 1,627,380.03 1,655,781.72 2,042,394.59
1,930,014.05 1,875,419.28 2,051,546.16 1,925,174.12 1,788,510.61 1,603,378.16
103,196.00 102,765.00 97,795.00 97,620.00 90,525.00 83,325.00
2,417,219.85 2,542,526.01 2,208,268.55 2,130,037.88 2,311,280.21 1,940,661.86
423,006.75 158,550.41 66,023.04 67,313.35 67,649.18 196,643.48
885,071.90 1,161,529.37 1,026,174.09 822,634.94 852,122.85 741,235.33
2,511,493.00 2,527,978.00 2,875,253.88 3,957,572.22 2,979,153.95 2,836,738.32
1,780,110.35 4,102,417.94 2,622,199.26 4,622,153.21 1,904,653.13 4,511,538.68
11,870,310.92 14,253,419.02 12,660,711.84 15,249,885.75 11,649,676.65 13,955,915.42

(342,657.40)

(1,554,227.76)

(2,457,193.73)

(5,197,579.35)

(1,507,623.17)

(3,140,816.28)

1,366,648.55 1,646,622.00 1,657,858.00 1,119,777.50 4,972,683.50 1,599,669.67
1,023,991.15 92,394.24 (799,335.73) (4,077,801.85) 3,465,060.33 (1,541,146.61)
4,140,945.57 4,048,551.33 4,847,887.06 8,925,688.91 5,460,653.95 7,001,800.56

$ 5,164,936.72

$ 4,140,945.57

$ 4,048,551.33

$ 4,847,887.06

$ 8,925,714.28

$ 5,460,653.95

73





City of Carroll

74 see accompanying independent auditor’s report.





Feleonaror g Conpany CFAll, PE

523 North Main Street
Carroll, lowa 51401
(712) 792-2464

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control
over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance
with Government Auditing Standards

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council:

We have audited in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Carroll, lowa, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the
related notes to financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements and have issued our report thereon dated November 1, 2016. Our report expressed
unmodified opinions on the financial statements which were prepared on the basis of cash
receipts and disbursements, a basis of accounting other than U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of
Carroll’s internal control over financial reporting to determine auditing procedures appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Carroll's internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Carroll’s
internal control.

Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might be significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses, and therefore, significant deficiencies
or material weaknesses may exist that were not identified. We did not identify any deficiencies
in internal control over financial reporting that we considered to be material weaknesses.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions,
to prevent or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the City’s financial statements will not be prevented or
detected and corrected on a timely basis.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control

which are less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

75





Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Carroll's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, non-compliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of non-compliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards. However, we noted certain immaterial instances of non-
compliance or other matters which are described in Part Ill of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.

Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the City’s operations for the
year ended June 30, 2016, are based exclusively on knowledge obtained from procedures
performed during our audit of the financial statements of the City. Since our audit was based on
tests and samples, not all transactions that might have had an impact on the comments were
necessarily audited. The comments involving statutory and other legal matters are not intended
to constitute legal interpretations of those statutes.

City of Carroll’'s Responses to Findings

The City of Carroll's responses to findings identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. City of Carroll's responses were
not subjected to auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Purpose of the Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion of the effectiveness
of the City’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
preformed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

We would like to acknowledge the many courtesies and assistance extended to us by
personnel of the City of Carroll during the course of our audit. Should you have any questions
concerning any of the above matters, we shall be pleased to discuss them with you at your
convenience.

%jfﬂﬂfﬂaﬁv—- Ceps, Ae.

Feldmann & Company CPAs, P.C.
November 1, 2016

76





(@)

(b)

(©)

City of Carroll
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year ended June 30, 2016

Summary of Independent Auditor’s Results

Unmodified opinions were issued on the financial statements, which were
prepared on the basis of cash receipts and disbursements, which is a
comprehensive basis of accounting other than U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

Reportable conditions in internal control over financial reporting were not
disclosed by the audit of the financial statements.

The audit did not disclose non-compliance, which is material to the financial
statements.

Findings Related to the Financial Statements:

Instances of Non-Compliance:
No matters were noted.
Internal Control Deficiencies:

No matters were noted.

7





City of Carroll
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year ended June 30, 2016

. Other Findings Related to Statutory Reporting:

[1-A-16

I1-B-16

I1-C-16

[1I-D-16

IlI-E-16

I-F-16

78

Official Depositories - A resolution naming official depositories has been
approved by the Council. The maximum deposit amounts stated in the
resolution was not exceeded during the year ended June 30, 2016.

Certified Budget - Disbursements during the year ended June 30, 2016, did not
exceed the amounts budgeted per Chapter 384.20 of the Code of lowa which
states in part that public monies may not be expended or encumbered except
under an annual or continuing appropriation.

Questionable Disbursements - No disbursements were noted that might not
meet the requirements of public purpose as defined in an Attorney General’s
opinion dated April 25, 1979.

Travel Expense - No expenditures of City money for travel expenses of
spouses of City officials or employees were noted.

Business Transactions — Business transactions between the City and City
officials or employees are detailed as follows:

Name, Title, and Business Transaction Amount
Adam Schweers, Mayor, Computer Maintenance $1,578.34
Owner of Computer Concepts hardware and software $ 1,143.00
Clay Haley, Council
Owner, Haley Implement Co. parts/repairs $ 1,255.00

In accordance with Chapter 362.5(10) of the Code of lowa the transactions with
Computer Concepts do not appear to represent a conflict of interest as the
contract to provide service for the Library computers was competitively bid, as
was the purchase of new computers. The trailer purchase was competitively
bid, and parts/repairs were four separate transactions done in the ordinary
course of business.

Excess Balance — The balances in the Special Revenue Funds: LOST, Police
Forfeiture, Crime Prevention, Library Trust and Rec Center Trust at June 30,
2016, were in excess of the disbursements for those funds for the year, as was
Capital Project-Corridor of Commerce, Water Utility Depreciation, and Water
Meter Deposit fund, Sewer Utility Depreciation, Sewer Capital Improvement fund,
Storm Water Utility Fund and the Storm Water Capital Improvement funds also
had excess fund balances.






-G-16

[1-H-16

I-1-16

I1-J-16

I1-K-16

I-L-16

Recommendation — The City should consider the necessity of maintaining this
substantial balance and, where financially feasible, consider reducing the balance
in an orderly manner through revenue reductions.

Response — The Special Revenue Funds, Capital Project Fund, and utility
funds have planned future programs and projects that will reduce the fund
balances.

Conclusion — Response accepted.

Bond Coverage - Surety bond coverage of City officials and employees is in
accordance with statutory provisions. The amount of coverage should be
reviewed annually to ensure that the coverage is adequate for current
operations.

Minutes - No transactions were found that we believe should have been
approved in the Council minutes but were not. However, we did note an instance
in the Council Minutes where the amount of an approved contract was not noted.

Recommendation — The City should insure that all minutes should indicate the
monetary obligation approved by the Council.

Response — The City Boards and Board secretaries shall be notified of this
oversite and reminded of proper recording of minutes to prevent this oversite in
the future.

Conclusion — Response accepted.
Deposits and Investments - We noted no instances of noncompliance with the

investment provisions of Chapter 12B & 12C of the Code of lowa and the City's
investment policy.

Revenue Bonds and Notes — We noted no instances of non-compliance with the
terms of the City’s revenue bond/note provisions.

Financial Condition — We observed no deficit ending balance for any funds at the
June 30, 2016, fiscal year end.

Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Chapter 403.19 of the Code of lowa provides a
municipality may certify loans, advances indebtedness and bonds (indebtedness)
to the County Auditor which qualify for reimbursement from incremental property
tax. The County Auditor provides for the division of property tax to repay the
certified indebtedness and provides available incremental property tax in
subsequent fiscal years without further certification by the City until the amount of
certified indebtedness is paid. We noted no corrections needed to TIF

79





certification to comply with Chapter 403 of the Code of lowa.

[1I-M-16  Urban Renewal Annual Report - The urban renewal annual report was approved
and certified to the Department of Management on or before December 1.

80





		F. Y. 2015-2016 Annual Financial Statement Audit

		CityCarroll2016Auditpdf




Uity of Carroll
5

112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

R
e

MEMO TO:  Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager %é@g R
FROM: Laura A. Schaefer, Finance Director/City Clerk Q&Q

DATE: January 3, 2017

SUBJECT: Fifth Amended and Restated Central Business District Urban Renewal Plan
e Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Ordinance

At the December 27, 2016 Council meeting, Council amended the area to the Fifth Amended Urban
Renewal Plan for the Amended and Restated Central Business District Urban Renewal Area. Council
also entered into a development agreement to provide financial assistance in the form of incremental
property tax payments (“grants”) to Biokinemetrics Holdings, LLC and DMBA Properties &
Consulting, Inc.

In order to collect tax increment revenue from the amended area, Council will need to adopt the
attached ordinance that allows for the levying and collection of tax increment financing property taxes
for fund public improvements and grant payments within the Amended and Restated Central Business
District Urban Renewal Area. This ordinance will allow the City Clerk to certify to the County
Auditor beginning December 1, 2017 the need for the collection of tax increment financing property
taxes for the re-payment of expenses for public improvements and grant payments in the area. The
December 1, 2017 certification will freeze the taxable base valuation as of January 1, 2016. The first
year of TIF collection from the additional area will be Fall 2018 (FY 2018/2019).

The attached Ordinance also directs the City Clerk to maintain the special revenue fund previously
established for the collection of the tax increment financing property taxes for the re-payment of the
expenses for the public improvements and grant payments.

RECOMMENDATION Council consideration and approval by waiving all three readings of the
attached Ordinance that allows for the levying and collection of tax increment financing propetty taxes
for the Fifth Amended and Restated Central Business District Urban Renewal Plan.






ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 9 OF THE CARROLL
MUNICIPAL CODE, PROVIDING THAT GENERAL PROPERTY TAXES
LEVIED AND COLLECTED EACH YEAR ON ALL PROPERTY LOCATED
WITHIN THE AMENDED AND RESTATED CENTRAL BUSINESS
DISTRICT URBAN RENEWAL AREA OF THE CITY OF CARROLL,
COUNTY OF CARROLL, STATE OF IOWA, BY AND FOR THE BENEFIT
OF THE STATE OF IOWA, CITY OF CARROLL, COUNTY OF CARROLL,
CARROLL COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, AND OTHER TAXING
DISTRICTS, BE PAID TO A SPECIAL FUND FOR PAYMENT OF
PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST ON LOANS, MONIES ADVANCED TO AND
INDEBTEDNESS, INCLUDING BONDS ISSUED OR TO BE ISSUED,
INCURRED BY SAID CITY IN CONNECTION WITH THE FIFTH
AMENDED AND RESTATED CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT URBAN

RENEWAL PROJECT

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Carroll, Iowa (the "City") has
heretofore, in Chapter 9 of the Carroll Municipal Code, provided for the division of taxes
within the Amended and Restated Central Business District Urban Renewal Area,
pursuant to Section 403.19 of the Code of Towa; and

WHEREAS, the Fifth Amended and Restated Urban Renewéfflén fof tHe ;
Amended and Restated Central Business District Urban Renewal Area (the "Amended

and Restated Project Area"), which was approved by Resolution No. 1689, on
December 27 , 2016, expanded the Amended and Restated Project Area to

include an additional area described therein as the Seventh Amended Project Area; and

WHEREAS, indebtedness has been incurred by the City, and additional
indebtedness is anticipated to be incurred in the future, to finance urban renewal project
activities within the Amended and Restated Project Area, and the continuing needs of
redevelopment within said Amended and Restated Project Area are such as to require the
continued application of the incremental tax resources of said Amended and Restated

Project Area; and

WHEREAS, the following enactment is necessary to accomphsh the objectives
described in the premises. ,

NOW, THEREF ORE, BE IT ORDAINED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA:






Chapter 9 of the Carroll Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:
Section 1: For purposes of this Chapter, the following terms shall have the
following meanings: I

A.  Original Project Area means that portion of the City of Carroll within the
boundaries described as follows:

- Commencing at the intersection of the centerline of Sixth Stréet and the easterly
right of way line of Court Street; thence South along said easterly right of way line
of Court Street to the southerly right of way line of Fifth Street; thence West
along said southerly right of way line of Fifth Street to the easterly right of way
line of Main Street; thence south along the right of way line of Main Street to the
southerly right of way line of Fourth Street; thence west along said southerly right
of way line of Fourth Street to a point approximately 15 feet northeasterly and
parallel to the northeastern-most track of the Chicago & Great Western Railroad;
thence northwesterly (approximately 15') parallel to the railroad track to the
westerly line of the north-south alley extended between West Street and Carroll
Street; thence north along the westerly line of said alley to the:centerline of Sixth
Street; thence east along said centerline of Sixth Street to the point of beginning.

B.  First Amended Project Area means that portion of the City of Carroll within
~ the boundaries described as follows:

Block 23 located between 5th, Main, 4th, and Court Streets.

C. Second Amended Project Area means that portion of the City of Carroll |
within the boundaries described as follows:

Commencing at the southeast corner of the intersection of Fourth Street with
Adams Street; thence westerly along the southerly right of way line of Fourth
Street to the easterly right of way line of Carroll Street; thence southerly to a point
approximately 40 feet north of the northerly track of the Chicago and
Northwestern Railroad; thence westerly approximately 40 feet parallel to said
northerly track to a point approximately 600 feet west of the westerly right of way
line of West Street; thence northerly parallel to and 600 feet west of West Street to
the middle of Sixth Street; thence easterly along the middle of Sixth Street to the
westerly line of the alley between West Street and Carroll Street; thence south
along the westerly line of said alley to a point 15 feet northeast of the former
northeast track of the Chicago and Great Western Railroad; thence southeasterly
15 feet parallel to said former track to the point of beginning.






D. Third Amended Project Area means that portion of the City of Carroll
within the boundaries described as follows:

Commencing at the center of the intersection of Fourth Street with the centerline
of Adams Street; thence southerly to a point approximately 30 feet north of the
westerly main track of the Chicago and Northwestern Railroad; thence westerly,
approximately 30 feet parallel to said westerly track, to the intersection with the
centerline of Highway 71; thence northerly along the centerline of Highway 71 to
its intersection with the centerline of Highway 30; thence southeasterly along the
centerline of Highway 30 to the intersection with West Sixth Street extended; ..
thence westerly along the centerline of West Sixth Street to a point 600 feet west
of West Street; thence southerly parallel to and 600 feet west of West Street to a
point 30 feet north of the northerly track of the Chicago and Northwestern
Railroad; thence Southeasterly 30 feet parallel to the northerly track of the
Chicago and Northwestern Railroad to the easterly right of way line of Carroll
Street; thence north to the Southerly right of way line of Fourth Street; thence
easterly along the Southerly right of way line of Fourth Street to the point of

beginning

E. F ourth Amended Project Area means that portion of the Clty of Carroll
within the boundarles described as follows:

Beginning at the Intersection of U.S. Highway No. 30 and U.S.-Highway No. 71 in
Carroll, Carroll County, Iowa; thence Northwesterly along the centerline of said
U.S. Highway 30 to the South line of the Northeast Quarter of the Northeast
Quarter of Section 23; Township 84 North, Range 35 West of the 5th P.M., Carroll
County, Iowa; thence East to the Easterly line of the northeast access road
extended, running parallel to and east of U.S. Highway 71, thence southerly along
the east line of the northeast access road to the centerline of Tenth Street, thence
westerly along the centerline of Tenth Street to the centerline of Highway No. 30;

thence northwesterly to the point of beginning.

F. Fifth Amended Pro1ect Area means that portion of the Clty of Carroll
within the boundaries described as follows:

. Commencing at the intersection of the centerline of Sixth Street (U.S. Highway
30) and the easterly right of way line of Court Street; thence southerly along said
easterly right of way line of Court Street to the southerly right of way line of Fifth
Street; thence easterly along said southerly right of way line of Fifth Street to the
easterly right of way line of Grant Road; thence northerly along said easterly right

of way line of Grant Road to the northerly right of way line of Seventh Street;






thence westerly along said northerly right of way line of Seventh Street to the
easterly right of way line of Simon Avenue; thence northerly along said easterly
right of way line of Simon Avenue to the northerly right of way line of Eighth
Street; thence westerly along said northerly right of way line of Eighth Street to
the easterly right of way line of Salinger Avenue; thence northerly along said
easterly right of way line of Salinger Avenue to the northerly right of way line of
Ninth Street; thence westerly along said northerly right of way line of Ninth Street
to the easterly right of way line of Boylan Avenue; thence northerly along said
easterly right of way line of Boylan Avenue to the northerly right of way line of
Tenth Street; thence westerly along the northerly right of way line of Tenth Street
to the southeast corner of Lot 7 of Neu Add., Sub of Blk 4 and Resub of Lot 5;
thence northerly along the westerly lot lines of Neu Add., Sub of Blk 4 and Resub
of Lot 5 to the northerly right of way line of Fifteenth Street; thence westerly
along the northerly right of way line of Fifteenth Street to the easterly line of the
northeast access road extended, east of U.S. Highway 71; thence southerly along
the easterly line of the northeast access road to the northerly right of way line of
Tenth Street; thence westerly along said northerly right of way line of Tenth Street
to the centerline of Sixth Street (U.S. Highway 30); thence southeasterly along
said centerline of Sixth Street (U.S. Highway 30) to the point- of beginning.:

G. Sixth Amended Project Area means:that portion of the Clty of Carroll
within the boundaries described as follows: -

Commencing at the intersection of the centerline of Sixth Street (U.S. Highway
30) and the easterly right of way line of Grant Road; thence southerly along the
easterly right of way line of Grant Road to the northerly right-of-way line of the
Union Pacific Railroad; thence southeasterly along said northerly right-of-way line
of the Union Pacific Railroad to the southwest corner of the East 81 feet of that
part of the East Half of the Northwest Quarter of Section 30, Township 84 North,
Range 34 West of the 5th P.M., lying north of the right-of-way of the Union
Pacific Railroad; thence northerly along said westerly property line thereof to the
southwest corner of Lot 26 of the Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of
Section 30, Township 84 North, Range 34 West of the 5th P.M.; thence. easterly
along said southerly property line of Lot 26 to the southeast corner of said Lot 26;
thence northerly to the southerly right of way line of Highway 30; thence easterly
along the said southerly right of way line of Highway 30 to the easterly right of
way line of Bella Vista Drive; thence northerly along said easterly right of way
line of Bella Vista Drive to a point parallel with the north property line of Lot E of
" Bella Vista First Addition First Resubdivision to the City of Carroll; thence
westerly across Bella Vista Drive, and continuing westerly along the north
property line of said Lot E of Bella Vista First Addition First Resubdivision;
thence southerly along the west property line of said Lot E of Bella Vista First






Addition First Resubdivision; thence westerly along the south property line of Lot
F of Bella Vista First Addition First Subdivision to the City of Carroll to the
easterly right of way line of Monterey Drive; thence northerly along said easterly
right of way line of Monterey Drive to a point parallel with the northerly right of
way line of Eighth Street; thence westerly across Monterey Drive and continuing
westerly along said northerly right of way line of Eighth Street, continuing .
westerly along the north property line of Lot 2, (except Lots A, C, D, E, and F
thereof) Southeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 19, Township 84
North, Range 34 West of the 5th P.M., Carroll, and continuing westerly along the
northerly right of way line of Eighth Street, to the westerly right of way line of
Vine Street; thence southerly along said westerly right of way line of Vine Street
to the northerly right of way line of Seventh Street; thence westerly along said
northerly right of way line of Seventh Street to the easterly right of way line of
Grant Road; thence southerly along said easterly right of way line of Grant Road

to the point of beginning,

H. Seventh Amended Project Area means that portion of the City of Carroll
within the boundaries described as follows: -

Commencing at the intersection of the westerly right of way.line of Court Street
and the Southerly right of way line of Fifth Street; thence East along said southerly
right of way line of Fifth Street to the easterly right of way line of Clark Street;
thence South along said easterly right of way line of Clark Street to the northern
boundary of the railroad right-of way;.thence West along the northern boundary of
the railroad right of way to the easterly right of way line of Main Street; thence
North along said easterly right of way line of Main Street to the northerly right of
way line of Fourth Street; thence East along said northerly right of way line of: . . .
Fourth Street to the westerly right of way line of Court Street; thence North along
said westerly right of way line of Court Street to the southerly right of way line of

Fifth Street.

I. Urban Renewal Plan shall mean the Fifth Amended and Restated Urban

Renewal Plan for the Amended and Restated Project Area, approved by
Resolution No. 1689 on December 27 , 2016 as the same may be

amended from time to time.

J. Amended and Restated Project Area shall mean, collectively, all of the
areas of the City of Carroll, lowa included within the Original Project Area, First
Amended Project Area, Second Amended Project Area, Third Amended Project -
Area, Fourth Amended Project Area, Fifth Amended Project Area, Sixth Amended
Project Area and Seventh Amended Project Area, each as descrlbed in this -

Ordinance.






Section 2: The taxes levied on the taxable property in the Amended and Restated
Project Area and each of the separate Project Areas made a part thereof, legally described
in Section 1 hereof, by and for the benefit of the State of Iowa, City of Carroll, County of
Carroll, Carroll Community School District, and all other taxing districts from and after
the effective date of this Ordmance shall be divided as hereinafter in.this Ordinance

provided.

Section 3: As to the Original PI‘OJ ect Area, that portlon of the taxes which would
be produced by the rate at which the tax is levied each year by or for each of the taxing
districts taxing property in the Original Project Area upon the total sum of the assessed
value of the taxable property in the Original Project Area as shown on the assessment roll
as of January 1, 1966, being the date of assessment for the assessment roll last equalized
prior to the adoption of the Central Business District Urban Renewal Project, Towa R-17,
shall be allocated to and when collected be paid into the fund for the respective taxing
district as taxes by or for said taxing district into which all other property taxes are paid.

. The taxes so determined shall be referred herein as the "base period taxes" for such

Project Area.

As to the First Amended Project Area, base period taxes shall be computed in the
same mannet, using the total assessed value shown on the assessment roll for January 1,
1970, being the date of assessment for the assessment roll last equalized prior to the
adoption of the First Amendment to the Central Business District Urban Renewal Project,

Towa R-17.

As to the Sccond Amended Project Area, base period taxes shall be computed in
the same manner, using the total assessed value shown on the assessment roll for January
1, 1983, being the date of assessment for the assessment roll last equalized prior to the
adoptlon of the Second Amendment to the Central Business District Urban Renewal

Project, Jowa R-17.

As to the Third Amended Project Area, base period taxes shall be computed in the
same manner, using the total assessed value shown on the assessment roll for January 1,
1989, being the first day of the calendar year preceding the effectwe date of Ordmance

No. 9001.

As to the Fourth Amended Project Area, base period taxes shall be computed in
. the same manner, using the total assessed value shown on the assessment roll for January
1, 1990, being the first day of the calendar year preceding the effective date of Ordinance

No. 9120.






As to the Fifth Amended Project Area, base period taxes shall be computed in the
same ranner using the total assessed value shown on the assessment roll as of January 1,
2007, being the first day of the calendar year preceding the effective date of Ordinance

No. 0817.

As to the Sixth Amended Project Area, base period taxes shall be computed in the
same manner using the total assessed value shown on the assessment roll as of January 1,
2013, being the assessment roll applicable to property in such Project Area as of January
1 of the calendar year preceding the effective date of Ordinance No. 1412

As to the Seventh Amended Project Area, base period taxes shall be computed in
the same manner using the total assessed value shown on the assessment roll as of
January 1, 2016, being the assessment roll applicable to property in such Project Area as
of January 1 of the calendar year preceding the effective date of this Ordinance.

Section 4: That portion of the taxes each year in excess of the base period taxes
for the Amended and Restated Project Area, determined for each Project Area thereof as
provided in Section 3 of this Ordinance, shall be allocated to and when collected be paid -
into the special tax increment fund previously established by the City-of Carroll to pay
the principal of and interest on loans; monies advanced to, or indebtédness, whether - -
funded, refunded, assumed or otherwise, including bonds issued under authority of -
Section 403.9 or Section 403.12 of the Code of Iowa, incurred by the City of Carroll,
Jowa to finance or refinance, in whole or in part, urban renewal projects undertaken
within the Amended and Restated Project Area pursuant to the Urban Renewal Plan,
except that (i) taxes for the regular and voter-approved physical plant and equipment levy
of a school district imposed pursuant to Iowa Code Section 298.2 and taxes for the
instructional support program of a school district imposed pursuant to Iowa Code Section
257.19 (but in each case only to the extent required under Iowa Code Section 403.19(2));
(ii) taxes for the payment of bonds and interest of each taxing district;: (iii) taxes imposed
under Jowa Code Section 346:27(22) related to joint county-city buildings; and (iv) any
other exceptions under Iowa Code Section 403.19 shall be collected against all taxable
property within the Amended and Restated Project Area without any: limitation as

hereinabove provided.

Section 5: Unless or until the total assessed valuation of the taxable property in
the Project Areas of the Amended and Restated Project Area exceeds the total assessed
value of the taxable property in said Project Area, shown by the assessment rolls referred
to in.Section 3-of this Ordinance, all of the taxes levied and collécted upon the taxable
property in the Amended and Restated Project Area shall be paid into.the funds for the
respective taxing districts as taxes by or for the taxing districts in the same manner as all

other property taxes.






Section 6: At such time as the loans, monies advanced, bonds and interest thereon
and indebtedness of the City of Carroll referred to in Section 4 hereof have been paid, all
monies thereafter received from taxes upon the taxable property in the Amended and
Restated Project Area shall be paid into the funds for the respective taxing dlStI‘lC'[S in the

same manner as taxes on all other property.

Section 7: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of
this Ordinance are hereby repealed. The provisions of this Ordinance are intended and
shall be construed so as to continue the division of taxes from taxable property in the
Amended and Restated Project Area under the provisions of Section 403.19 of the' Code
of Iowa, as authorized in Chapter 9 of the Carroll Municipal Code, and to fully
implement the division of taXes in the Seventh Amended Project Area. In the event that
any provision of this Ordinance shall be determined to be contrary to law it shall not
affect other provisions or application of this Ordinance which shall at all times be
construed to fully invoke the provisions of Section 403.19 of the Code of Towa with
reference to the Amended and Restated Project Area and the territory contained therein.

Section 8: This Ordmance shall be in effect after its final passage, approval and
publication as provided by law. .






PASSED AND APPROVED this

2017.

ATTEST:

City Clerk

Read first time:

day of

Mayor

Read second time:

Read third time:

PASSED AND APPROVED:

PUBLISHED:

01302084-1\10275-045.







City of Carroll
¢

112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

MEMO TO:  Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager i’ -
¢
FROM:  Jack Wardell, Director of Parks and Recreation ,_!i)u)
DATE:  January 3, 2017

SUBJECT: Report of Bid Opening — Recreation Center Fire Alarm Replacement —
Carroll Recreation Center

Pre Bid Estimate: F.Y.2016-17 - Budgeted Item $48,000.00

On January 4, 2017 two bid proposals were received at the time of the bid opening and the
result is listed below:

Drees Company — Carroll, lowa $13,999.00
Ed M. Feld Equipment Company, Inc — Carroll, lowa  $15,433.00

This project included replacement of the existing fire alarm system with a Fire Lite 9600
system. The contractor will perform demolition and replacement for every device located
in the Carroll Recreation Center facility. The project will also include a fire alarm
panel. This is the first step to replace all existing devises, panel, and battery backup. The
new panel will be able to handle the current and future building needs. We will plan on
bringing the building up to code in phases.

Listed below are the devices being changed out during this phase along with the panel.

Smoke Detector Classrooms Main lobby
Smoke Detector Classrooms Main lobby
Smoke Detector Classrooms North Hall doors
Smoke Detector Classrooms North Hall doors
Smoke Detector Stage East

Smoke Detector Stage West

Smoke Detector Stage Upper stage storage
Duct Detector AHU 6 East Mezzanine
Duct Detector AHU 6 East Mezzanine
Duct Detector Rec Area AHU 5 Center Mezzanine
Duct Detector Rec Area AHU 5 Center Mezzanine

Duct Detector AHU 1 &4






Duct Detector
Duct Detector
Duct Detector
Pull Station

Pull Station

Pull Station

Pull Station

Heat Detector
Heat Detector
Heat Detector
Heat Detector
Heat Detector
Heat Detector
Heat Detector
Heat Detector
Heat Detector
Heat Detector
Heat Detector
Heat Detector
Heat Detector
Heat Detector
Heat Detector
Heat Detector
Heat Detector
Heat Detector
Heat Detector
Heat Detector
Heat Detector
Heat Detector
Heat Detector
Heat Detector
Heat Detector
Heat Detector

Stage AHU 3
Classrooms
Classrooms
Rec Area
Classrooms
Classrooms
Classrooms
Classrooms
Classrooms
Classrooms
Classrooms
Classrooms
Classrooms
Classrooms
Classrooms
Classrooms
Classrooms
Classrooms
Classrooms
Classrooms
Stage
Stage
Stage
Stage

Rec Area AHU 5

Rec Area AHU 5
Rec Area AHU 5
Rec Area AHU 5
Rec Area AHU 5

East Entry

South Entry

West Entry

South Entry

Janitor closet
Aerobics Room
Aerobics Storage
Men's RR

Women's RR

Office Storage
Activity Kitchenette
Kitchen Pantry
Activity Storage
Crafts Room

Kitchen - Crafts Room
Crafts Room Storage
Crafts Room Storage
Theatre Room
Theatre Room
Theatre Room
Theatre Room
Women’s RR
Control Desk

Gym Storage

Men’s RR

Janitor closet

Fitness Room Closet
Gym Storage

Family Change
Family Change

RECOMMENDATION: For the Mayor and City Council to consider and approval of the

responsible bid from Drees Company — Carroll, lowa for the bid price of $13,999.00






CITY OF CARROLL
Department of Parks & Recreation
112 E. 5th Street
CARROLL, IOWA 51401

(712) 792-1000

For: Recreation Center Fire Alarm Replacement

Bids were opened on: January 4, 2017 @ 11:00 am

Supplier Total
. Drees Company - Carroll, lowa $13,999.00
. Ed M. Feld Equipment Company, Inc. - Carroll, lowa $15,433.00

Signature:

S

Date: 01/04/2017







City of Carroll

112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

MEMO TO: Mike Pogge-Weavet, City Manager Jugt- v
FROM: Randall M. Krauel, Director of Public Works ,@V/’A)
DATE: Januaty 4, 2017

SUBJECT: Thitd Street Storm Sewer Improvements - 2016
Group “A” West Basin
Cettificate of Substantial Completion

The contractor, King Construction, has substantially completed the work on the Third Street Storm
Sewer Imptrovements — 2016 Group “A” West Basin project. The date of substantial completion of
the wotk was October 27, 2016. 'The Contract specified full completion date was November 15,
2016. Attached is a Certificate of Substantial Completion and Site Punch List of items to be
completed. The Cettificate provides for the Site Punch List items to be completed by May 31, 2017.

The cost of contract wotk completed is $1,379,432.07. ‘The original Contract amount was
$1,368,237.55. A Change Otder for additional wotk completed is being prepared. It will be
presented for consideration upon completion.

I Mayor and City Council consideration and acceptance of the Certificate
of Substantial Completion for the Third Street Storm Sewer Improvements — 2016 Group “A” West
Basin project.

RMK:ds

attachments (2)






CITY OF CARROLL

CERTIFICATE OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

PROJECT: THIRD STREET STORM SEWER IMPROVEMENTS - 2016 GROUP "A" WEST BASIN
OWNER: City of Carroll, Jowa OWNER'S Contract No.: Resolution #1642
CONTRACTOR:  King Contracting, LLC d/b/a King Consttuction

ENGINEER: JEO Consulting Group, Inc.

DATE OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION: October 27, 2016

This Cettificate of Substantial Completion applies to all Work under the Contract Documents.
To: City of Carroll, Jowa
And To: King Contracting, LL.C d/b/a King Construction

The Work to which this Certificate applies has been inspected by authorized representatives of OWNER, CONTRACTOR,
and ENGINEER, and that Wotk is hereby declated to be substantially complete in accordance with the Contract
Documents.

A site punch list of items to be completed or corrected is attached hereto. This list may not be all-inclusive, and the

failure to include an item in it does not altet the responsibility of CONTRACTOR to complete all the Work in

accordance with the Contract Documents. The items in the site punch list shall be completed or corrected by
CONTRACTOR by May 31, 2017.

The responsibilities between OWNER and CONTRACTOR for security, operation, safety, maintenance, heat, utilities,
insurance and watranties and guarantees shall be as follows: See Specifications.

The following documents are attached and made part of this Certificate:

Site Punch List

This certificate does not constitute an acceptance of Work not in accordance with the Contract Documents nor is
it a release of CONTRACTOR's obligation to complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

ENGINEER issues this Certificate of Substantial Completion on January 4, 2017.

City of Carroll, Iowa
By:

Randall M. Krauel, City Engineer
CONTRACTOR accepts this Cettificate of Substantial Completion on:

(Date)
King Contracting, LLC d/b/a King Construction
By:

(Authorized Signature)
OWNER accepts this Cettificate of Substantial Completion on January 9, 2017,

City of Carroll, Iowa
By:

Eric P. Jensen, Mayor






CITY OF CARROLL

SITE PUNCH LIST
Items to be Completed or Cortected

PROJECT: THIRD STREET STORM SEWER IMPROVEMENTS - 2016 GROUP "A" WEST BASIN

OWNER: City of Catroll OWNER'S Contract No.: Resolution #1642
CONTRACTOR: King Constracting, LLC d/b/a King Consttuction

ENGINEER: JEO Consulting Group, Inc.

Date
Location Description Completed
All Locations Conventional Seeding, Seeding, Fertilizing and Mulching
Sta. 119+83.96, 32.94 Rt. Install chimney seal
SMH-101
Sta. 119+83.96, 0.00 Rt. Seal and Vacuum Test

SMH-102 Install chimney seal







City of Carroll
\4

112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

MEMO TO: Mike Pogge-Weavet, City Manager ;ﬁ’l’\ 4 |
FROM: Randall M. Krauel, Ditectot of Public Works %/C
DATE: January 4, 2017

SUBJECT: Third Street Storm Sewer Improvements - 2016
Group “B” East Basin
Change Otder No. 1

Duting construction of the Third Street Storm Sewer Improvements — 2016 Group “B” East Basin
ptoject, subsurface conditions encountered dictated changes to the plans. The changes to date,
along with proposed costs, ate detailed in the attached proposed Change Order No. 1 and
summatized as follows:

1. Construction of 10.5 feet of 6-inch Ductile Iron Pipe Watermain $1,239.00
2. Fittings for 6-inch Ductile Iron Pipe Watermain $2,500.00
3. Sanitary sewer service relocations $16,500.00
4. Removal of 39.0 feet of 12-inch Vittified Clay Pipe Sanitary Sewer $780.00
5. Construction of 39.0 feet of 12-inch Ductile Iron Pipe Sanitary Sewer $6,552.00
Total $27,571.00

The proposed Change Order changes the contract price as follows:

Original Contract Price $850,833.90
Change Ordet No. 1 $27,571.00
Contract Price with Change Order $878,404.90

The Contract full completion date was November 15, 2016. The construction is not completed at
this ime. No change in contract time is included in the proposed Change Ozrder No. 1.

Mayor and City Council consideration and approval of Change Otrder
No. 1 to the Third Street Storm Sewer Improvements — 2016 Group “B” East Basin project
Contract.

RMK:ds

attachments (2)






CITY OF CARROLL

CHANGE ORDER

NO.1
PROJECT: THIRD STREET STORM SEWER IMPROVEMENTS - 2016 GROUP "B" EAST BASIN
OWNER: City of Catroll OWNER'S Contract No.: Resolution #1643
CONTRACTOR: Rognes Corp.
ENGINEER: JEO Consulting Group, Inc.
DATE OF ISSUANCE: Janwaty 4, 2017 EFFECTIVE DATE: January 9, 2017

You are directed to make the following changes in the Contract Documents:
Description: See Attached

Reason for Change Order: See Attached

Attachments: Attachment A
CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE: CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIMES:
Original Contract Price: Original Contract Times:
$ 850,833.90 Full Completion: November 15, 2016
Net Increase (Decrease) from previous Change Net change from previous Change Orders No. -- to
Orders No. -- to - No. --:
Full Completion: 0 Days
$ 0.00
Contract Price prior to this Change Order: Contract Times prior to this Change Order:
$ 850,833.90 Full Completion: November 15, 2016
Net Increase (Peerease) of this Change Order: Net increase (decrease) this Change Order:
$ 27,571.00 Full Completion: 0 Days
Contract Price with all approved Change Orders: Contract Times with all approved Change Orders:
$ 878,404.90 Full Completion: November 15, 2016
RECOMMENDED: APPROVED: ACCEPTED:
City of Carroll City of Carroll Rognes Corp.
By: ‘ By: By:
Randall M. Krauel, City Engineer Eric P. Jensen, Mayor (Authorized Signature)

Date: January 4, 2017 Date: January 7, 2017 Date:






THIRD STREET STORM SEWER IMPROVEMENTS - 2016

GROUP “B” EAST BASIN
CHANGE ORDER NO. 1
ATTACHMENT A
Desctiption:
1.1 Construct 10.5 feet of 6-inch Ductile Iron Pipe (DIP) Watermain at Third Street and

Court Street.

1.2 Fittings, 4-45 Degtee Bends, for 6-inch Ductile Iron Pipe Watermain.
1.3 Relocate three sanitaty sewer setvice lines located at 212, 220 and 224 E. Thitd Street.
14 Remove 39.0 feet of 12-inch Vitrified Clay Pipe (VCP) Sanitary Sewer at Street
Maintenance Garage.
1.5 Construct 39.0 feet of 12-inch Ductile Iron Pipe Sanitary Sewer at Street Maintenance
Garage.
Reason for Change Order:
1.1 Watermain was otiginally identified and bid as 6-inch Ductile Iron Pipe Watermain.
1.2 See 1.1.
1.3 Sanitaty sewert setvices conflicted with proposed storm sewer.
14 Sanitaty sewer was otiginally identified and bid as 8-inch Vitrified Clay Pipe Sanitary
Sewet.
1.5 See 1.4.
Cost:
Item Estimated Unit Extended
No. Description Unit Quantity Price Price
1.1 Watermain, 6-in. DIP L.F. 10.5 $118.00 $1,239.00
1.2 Fittings, 6-in DI, 45° Bend Ea. 4 $625.00 $2,500.00
1.3 Sanitaty Sewet Service Line 'Ea. 3 $5,500.00 $16,500.00
1.4  Remove Sanitary Sewer 12-in. VCP LF. 39,0 $20.00 $780.00
1.5  Sanitary Sewer 12-in DIP LF. 39,0 $168.00 $6,552.00

Total Change Otrder No. 1 $27,571.00






